
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




White Paper 
 
Calgary Feedback: Sept 13 2016   Edmonton Feedback: Sept 22, 2016 
9 participants plus Paul and Alasdair:  12 Participants plus Tammy and Jocelyn 
Dianne, Penny, David, JB, Brenda  Darrell, Cecile, Joanne, Brad MRJC, Donna EPS 
Gary, Erika, Tom, new guy   Stan, Marne, Anita, Pete, Gordon, Wendy, Red Head 
      Online: Ali, Michelle, Graham 
Calgary comments; 
 
-Compensation is low for both Civil and Family and the Family rate has not changed since 1997. 


-Renting space is costly for mediators 


-Australia study suggests that for every dollar spent in mediation services by government, 9 dollars is 


saved by the system.   


-Co-mediation allows for gender balance and prevents mediator fatigue and allows for mentoring to 


take place. 


-Make presentations to the Law Society 


-What is mediation? 


-The public understanding of mediation needs to be greatly increased. 


-Educate the law profession about mediation 


-People should be told to get a good mediator instead of get a good lawyer. 


-Engage law students 


-There should be a media plan 


-Write every law school 


 
Edmonton comments: 
 


-You have to convince government what the benefit of ADR is to them.  Politicians like to get re-elected. 


-Focus should be on professionalism and self-regulation 


-We should push for degrees and post graduate degrees in mediation 


-Whenever legislation is amended, insert an ADR clause with a designation into the legislation 


-Credibility is very important  


-Focus on self- regulation, not compensation 


-Self- regulation is costly for individual mediators 


-While the promotion of ADR will take time, there should be short term goals 


-Legislation should say that if you call yourself a mediator, you must belong to an organization-it’s a 


start! 


-Don’t just show a business case for ADR but also show how to roll it out because mandated ARD 


programs do work 


-Public awareness of ADR is critical 


-Leverage the media 


 Stress the long term effects of ADR on children’s health as a health benefit 


-The court is a perfect form for people with personality disorders 


-Tap into social media 


-Not just stats but qualitative work  


-What should the awareness strategy be? 


We should have testimonials of success 


-Is there systematic support of ADR in the law profession? 








ADRIA Action Plan for Mediation Advocacy 
 
The Task Force recommended that the ADRIA Board of Directors adopt a multi-faceted, 
long-term, and progressive approach to Advocacy for the Mediation Profession in Alberta to 
enhance the potential for mediation through the following five key objectives: 
 


1. Increase Awareness - ensuring Albertans are more aware of mediation (and other 
ADR options) and how such options can provide for less costly and more satisfying 
outcomes to disputes that arise in their personal and professional lives. 


 
2. Increase Access to and Use of Mediation (ADR First) - working to increase the 


use of mediation as a dispute resolution option available to Albertans. Putting forth 
progressive initiatives with the courts, government agencies, regulatory bodies, 
municipal bodies, professional associations, organized labour, industry groups, 
non-profits and the business community to create new "3mainstream" opportunities 
for mediation and ADR. 


 
3. Advance the Business Case for Mediation - promoting the economic argument 


for mediation (and related ADR practices) to demonstrate the value they provide to 
government, businesses, organizations and the public will increase investment in 
mediation and opportunities for mediators. Especially in times of fiscal 
constraint, the "business case" and industry-wide success indicators will ensure an 
organization's proposed or existing ADR program will be supported, or even 
expanded. 


 
4. Enhance the Value of the Mediation Profession – by: 


 Advocating for fair and appropriate compensation that recognizes the 
unique skills and competencies mediators bring to resolving disputes and 
their personal investment in training and development 


 Supporting excellent training and education; and 


 Ensuring proper and effective credentialing. 
While recognizing pro-bono mediation activities are an important mechanism for 
developing skills and "giving back" to the community, our public institutions must 
be encouraged to do more to ensure their roster mediators are appropriately 
compensated and recognized for the significant role they play in reducing the heavy 
cost of workplace conflict, family breakdowns, litigation and the courts. Many of 
these institutions hope to increase the use of mediation in the resolution of disputes. 
Building public and organizational expectations for pro-bono or low-cost 
mediations will not sustain a profession and, over time, will compromise future 
quality and supply of mediators. Advocating for appropriate compensation is 
important to attract competent professionals and contribute to long-term viability of 
the profession. 


 
5. Protect the Public – while mediation, (and other ADR professions such as 


Arbitration) are unregulated professions, the ADR Institutes of Canada and Alberta 
provide national standards, recognized designations, ongoing quality assurance and 
robust complaint policies that serve to protect the public. Continued diligence and 
attention to maintaining high standards of quality, and to building public 
awareness, will enhance the profession and increase demand for professionally 
qualified and designated mediators. 


 







MEMBERSHIP PERSPECTIVES 
 
Top priorities or views, as expressed Fall 2016 by the membership, are: 


 Improve GOA/Justice compensation levels for mediators 


 Reinstate the Rules of Court regarding mandatory ADR 


 Increase public awareness and demand for ADR, mediation and designations 


 Regulate the profession (there were mixed views expressed on this issue) 


 STOP apologizing for or justifying ADR advocacy (the research is conclusive) 
AND – the ADRIA Task Force’s efforts were truly appreciated and valued by our members. 
 
COLLABORATIVE STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
It was further recommended by the Task Force that these objectives can be best achieved 
through Collaborative Stakeholder Engagement. The five recommended stakeholder 
communities with whom ADRIA must work are: 
 


A. The Courts and Justice System; 
B. Other Government Ministries and Publically Funded Agencies; 
C. The Business Community and Professional Associations; 
D. ADR Associations and Partners; and 
E. ADRIA Resources and Membership: 


 
 


 


Stakeholder Groups 
Recommended Actions 
 


 
Immediate & 2017 


 
2018  & beyond 


 The Board’s immediate 
communication plan involved 
customized letters to almost 
all stakeholders identified, 
accompanied by copies of the 
White Paper Executive 
Summary, AND a series of 
member consultation sessions 
that were hosted in Calgary, 
Edmonton and online. 


Create a standing Board 
agenda item 


A. The Courts and Justice System   
(1) Encourage regular reviews of 
compensation and qualifications for 
mediators in various Court and Ministry of 
Justice mediation programs to improve 
consistency, comparability, and 
appropriateness; 
o Adopt program and compensation policies 
that fully and equitably value 


ADRIA meeting with Minister 
June 2016,  Follow-up in 
December.   
 
Supportive letter sent to 
Minister & CJ from AFMS & 
CDAA (Oct 2016). 
 


Focus on western province 
comparability within Justice 
 
Exploit statements attesting 
to the value of mediation and 
the profession 
 







the unique skills and qualifications of staff 
and roster mediators; 
o Building on the Western Provinces Task 
Group, support the work of the task group to 
develop compensation principles, explore 
best practices and establish a degree of 
consistency among comparable programs; 
and 
o Protect the public by ensuring access to 
robust complaint mechanisms, ensuring that 
roster mediators are members of recognized 
professional associations, are adequately 
trained and hold recognized credentials. 


Develop and enhance 
relationship with Minister and 
Judiciary 
 
Further improve complaint 
mechanism 
 
COLA analysis of roster 
compensation rates 
 
Add a retired Judge to the 
Board  
 
Support moves to solo 
mediations for proven roster 
mediators, particularly those 
pursuing C.Med designations 
 
Member perspective:  Job 1 


 


Continue to increase diversion 
programs from the Courts 
 
Explore and embrace 
evaluative ADR processes 
 
Breakdown barriers and 
resistance 
 
Find support and funding for a 
collaborative public 
information campaign (eg 
Court TV) 


(2) Enhance, promote and expand mediation 
as an integral and preferred component of 
Alberta's Court diversion programs; 
o Work to ensure the highest possible 
percentage of potential litigants are 
diverted to some form of mediation, ideally 
before ever entering the court system; 
o Reduce restrictions and reservations 
regarding the nature of disputes that 
can be addressed through ADR, mediation 
and restorative justice – building on best 
practices, established and proven in other 
jurisdictions; and 
o Institute an effective public information 
strategy to influence the early behaviors and 
choices made by those initiating or 
considering litigation. 


Document diversion rates and 
pursue options to increase. 
 
Support initiatives to broaden 
the scope of cases sent to 
mediation. 
 
Research best practices for 
influencing early behaviours 
and choices made.    


 


(3) Ensure compliance of the mandatory 
dispute resolution provisions of the Alberta 
Rules of Court; 
o Updated and introduced in November 2010, 
The Alberta Rules of Court govern litigation 
processes at the Court of Queen's Bench, the 
Court of Appeal and, to a lesser extent, the 
Provincial Court (for circumstances not 
otherwise addressed in the Provincial Court 
Act). The latest update to the Rules 
introduced the requirement that all parties to 
litigation participate in at least one form of 
dispute resolution prior to proceeding to trial. 
Acceptable processes include judicial dispute 
resolution (JDR) and a number of other court, 


Follow-up letters to Minister 
& CJ to reinstate ADR Rules. 
 
Seek a commitment to 
reinstate 
 
Capitalize on recent and 
continuing shortage of judges, 
AND changing attitudes re 
diversion programs and 
access to justice. 
 
Member perspective: “Take 
down the White Flag”, and be 


 







government or private dispute resolution 
options, including mediation. Enforcement of 
this Rule was suspended by the Court 
of Queen’s Bench in February 2013, in 
response to the heavy demand for JDRs and 
the court’s inability to provide the service, 
given what it stated were insufficient judicial 
resources. There are, however, other forms of 
dispute resolution specifically recognized 
within the Rule that could be used other than 
JDR. This suggests enforcement of the Rule 
need not be suspended. Therefore, ADRIA 
should work to ensure that compliance with 
the Rule is reinstated, focusing on dispute 
resolution options other than JDR for that 
compliance. This would generate greater 
demand for mediation in the private sector. 


forceful in our arguments for 
increased ADR. 


(4) Optimize the value of Judicial Dispute 
Resolution (JDRs) processes: 
o The appropriate and consistent use of JDRs 
as an evaluative dispute resolution process 
should be emphasized; 
o JDR should be used primarily in situations 
where other forms of dispute resolution have 
been attempted by the parties and where 
they have not reached a resolution. It should 
be used judiciously, primarily as a last 
resort, not as the first go-to dispute 
resolution option. This would create more 
work for private mediators and reduce the 
burden on the courts to provide JDR as the 
dispute resolution option of first instance. 
Additionally, minimizing the use of JDR as a 
dispute resolution option of first instance 
would reduce the cost to the taxpayer that 
could and perhaps should be borne by the 
litigants themselves. 
o Acknowledging the heavy demand currently 
placed on the courts by the demand for JDR, 
options should be considered to reduce 
Alberta's overreliance on JDRs so that other 
dispute resolution options can be fully 
utilized. These might include: 


 Introducing an appropriate 
application fee for JDRs that 
recognizes the true cost of engaging 
the judiciary; and/or 


 Requiring another form of dispute 
resolution option such as mediation 
prior to accessing a JDR process; 
and/or 


Distinguish between JDR and 
ADR mediation.  Distinguish 
between facilitative and 
evaluative JDRs, and in both 
cases, ensure that the process 
is understood by the parties 
in advance.  Eg GOA websites 
and JDR explanatory materials 
 
Learn lessons from NJI 
(Lawrence Susskind) 
 
Support notion of requiring 
ADR mediation before JDR 
 
Make economic argument 
regarding the true cost of 
JDRs 
 
Explore fee structure for JDRs 
that does not compromise 
access to justice. 
 
Explain JDRs on ADRIA 
website 
 
Collaborate with Resolution 
Services 
 
Recruit a judge to ADRIA BoD 
 
Challenge JDR-centric thinking 


Explore opportunities to 
collaborate with the NJI 
 
Judiciary conference? 
 
Joint training for judiciary? 
 
Expand and improve the 
(evaluative?) ADR resources 
available as viable alternatives 
to JDRs 







 Introducing objective criteria and a 
triage process to identify more cases 
for mediation, separating them from 
those that should proceed directly to 
JDR.  


(5) Promote effective ADR training and 
professional development partnerships: 
o Promoting high standards of practice in a 
consistent fashion within the Alberta courts 
and legal profession will lead to broader 
acceptance of ADR and mediation as a 
profession. Building upon ADRIA's expertise 
and experience, this entails working with the 
Alberta's judiciary, law schools, the Law 
Society of Alberta, the Legal Education Society 
of Alberta (LESA) and the Ministry of Justice 
and Solicitor General (Resolution and Court 
Administrative Services). 


Collaborate with LESA, CBA, 
Law Society 
 
Share in ADR luncheons and 
professional development 
opportunities 


Continue & expand 


(6) Maintain an emphasis on early dispute 
resolution within the Reforming Family 
Justice System (RFJS) initiative; 
o With Alberta engaged in a proactive 
approach to reforming the family justice 
system, efforts to strengthen the Dispute 
Resolution sector’s voice within existing and 
future Working Group initiatives will build 
demand for early resolution options, most 
notably mediation.  


Work with RFJS leadership 
team (Justice, Judiciary, Law 
Society). 
 
Reframe as Family 
restructuring 
 
Create guidelines and a 
registry for a principled 
separation/divorce 
 
Combine resources within the 
construct of an all-Alberta 
ADR Forum 
 


Lead the RFJS initiative 


B. Other Government Ministries & 
Publicly Funded Agencies 


  


(1) Adopt consistent standards for 
government ADR programs and practitioners; 
o Reduce inconsistencies within the programs 
offered by the Government of Alberta (GOA) 
Ministries, and reduce inconsistencies 
amongst comparable Federal and provincial 
ADR programs. Eliminate pro-bono (low 
bono) mediation for the provision of 
provincial public services and ensure that 
mediator compensation is fair and 
reasonable; 
o Introduce common standards for staff 
mediators that ensure they are adequately 
trained, supported with ongoing professional 
development, and funded to pursue 
recognized credentials as a condition of 
employment; 


Create policy and content for 
pro-bono activities (academic, 
informative, encouraging) 
 
Partner with DRN to lead ADR 
Forum 


Functional Authority 
discussions with GOA 
 
Promote/Adopt common 
baseline standards 







o Introduce common standards for roster 
mediators to ensure they are members of a 
recognized professional association, are 
adequately trained and hold recognized 
credentials; 
o Support the informal efforts of the GOA's 
Dispute Resolution Network (DRN); and 
o Consider creating a Functional Authority 
(FA) for ADR within the GOA to provide 
oversight and broad policy guidelines within 
which individual Ministries can customize 
their ADR programs to meet specialized 
needs. 


(2) Consider broad GOA policy directives that 
mandate development of internal and 
external ADR programs where such programs 
will benefit government functions, reduce the 
cost of litigation, enhance workplace 
relations, and improve the quality of daily 
interactions between Albertans and their 
government. 


Propose to DRN 
 
Work with Resolution Services 


Adopt Functional Authority 
(FA) approach to embrace 
common principles 
throughout GOA 


(3) Initiate with ADRIA and other non-profit 
assistance an Alberta multi-media public 
service information campaign to promote 
ADR and mediation, including continuing 
work with International Conflict Resolution 
Day: 
o Place emphasis on the positive social values 
that ADR and mediation embody within 
family settings, business culture and the 
workplace, including relationship building, 
collaboration and consensus decision making; 
o Emphasize the reduced financial and 
emotional cost of mediated resolutions; and 
o Consider government-sponsored forums to 
advance the practice of ADR in Alberta. 


Build the content.  Seek 
partners and funding. 
 
Promote an all-Alberta ADR 
Forum & Learning Event 
 
Continue to support CR Day, 
including ADRIC efforts 
nationally 
 
Encourage BCAMI & Mediate 
BC to adopt the common date 
 
Cost of Conflict Business case 
development, ideally with 
ADRIC (including an emotional 
health ROI?) 
 


 


(4) Recognize, support and enhance Alberta's 
existing publically funded ADR programs, 
including but not limited to: 
o Municipal Dispute Resolution Services 
(MDRS) including providing input 
into MGA legislation changes regarding ADR 
planned for 2016; 
o Service Alberta’s Registry and referral 
services for Alberta`s non-profit organizations 
and the general public; 
o Alberta Energy Regulator’s ADR program in 
promoting ADR resolutions within Alberta’s 
energy sector; and 


Continue to support MDRS 
Advisory Group, and seek 
other such opportunities 
 
Reach out to Service Alberta 
and Alberta Culture’s BDP 
(Board Development 
Program) 
 
Support and advance ALRI 
proposals for non-profit law 
reform (specifically a default 
informal DR mechanism) 


 







o Alberta Culture & Tourism’s programs and 
services to assist communities and non-profits 
in Alberta; 


(5) Explore Early Education programs and ADR 
resources in schools: 
o Build on the experience of the Peer 
Mediation and Skills Training (PMAST) 
initiative in Calgary, and the Restorative 
Action Program (RAP) program in 
Saskatchewan to explore new opportunities 
to integrate conflict resolution skills into the 
curriculum at all levels of Alberta`s Education 
System. 


Continue to press for a 
meeting with the Minister of 
Education. 
 
Engage in curriculum 
development program 
recently initiated 
 
MOU with PMAST signed 


Curriculum development is a 
multi-year undertaking by the 
GOA 


C. The Business Community & 
Professional Associations 


  


(1) Develop a convincing business case for 
ADR and mediation, applicable to all sectors 
of the economy, including its applications for 
the attraction, engagement and retention of 
human capital; 
o In order to be successful, this initiative 
needs to be commenced under the 
umbrella of ADRIC, our national credentialing 
organization, with the support of affiliates like 
ADRIA across the country. This would allow 
for the critical mass and national effort 
needed to make an impact in the long 
term. Funding support by ADRIC (and other 
partners/agencies) will also be needed. 


Current joint grant proposal 
to ADRIC (from AAMS/ADRIA) 


 


(2) Engage the judiciary and legal profession 
to articulate and acknowledge the additional 
cost saving potential of utilizing ADR 
professionals who are not legally trained to 
conduct pre-trial mediations, provided they 
have the requisite training, experience and 
credentials to be effective. This would require 
engagement with the National Judicial 
Institute (NJI), Law Societies, Legal Education 
Societies, Family Mediation Societies, etc.; 


Increased engagement with 
Law Society, CBA & LESA. 


Actively press for change 


(3) Work collaboratively with industry groups, 
organized labour and professional 
associations to develop awareness of, and 
interest in, ADR policies, programs, training 
and services that would have a positive 
impact on their respective employment 
sectors. Promote ADR communication skills as 
an essential leadership or professional 
competency. These include: 
o Human Resources Professional Associations 
(HRIA, CCHRA, HRPA, etc.); 
o Health Care Professions; 
o Engineering & Construction Sector; 


Develop speaking points and 
powerpoint presentations. 
 
Engage Board and volunteers. 
 
Create a Speakers Bureau and 
actively solicit speaking 
opportunities. 
 
Develop webpage content 


 







o Chambers of Commerce and Economic 
Development Groups; 
o Better Business Bureaus; 
o Small Business Associations; 
o Organized Labour groups, and 
o many others. 


(4) Develop a resource guide to assist 
organizations wishing to develop their own 
ADR policy or program, promoting high 
standards of mediator training and 
professional practice; 
o Ideally, this effort would also be 
commenced under the umbrella of ADRIC 
as the resulting resource and communication 
tools would be useful to all ADR Affiliates and 
Associations, in Alberta and across Canada. 


Gather best practices and 
resources. 
 
Generate webpage content 


Propose an ADRIC initiative. 


D. ADR Associations and Partners   
(1) Increase mentorship and entry-level 
mediation opportunities. Where these 
opportunities involve pro-bono activities in 
sectors such as community mediation, ensure 
they do not undermine the professional 
aspirations of Alberta`s practicing mediators; 


Explore mentorship and 
volunteer opportunities with 
partners 


 


(2) Clarify and work to create consistency 
with respect to organizational use of 
ADR/mediation definitions, models, styles, 
techniques, etc. The variety of terms and 
constantly changing language is confusing, 
especially to the general public, and does not 
contribute positively to the 
professionalization of mediation. Care needs 
to be taken with language choice and there is 
a need to use terms consistently within 
Alberta and beyond. ADRIC should play a 
leadership role in this area; 


 Potential joint AAMS/ADRIA 
proposal for ADRIC funding 
 
Create Canadian content for 
Wikipedia 


(3) Support and actively engage with ADRIC 
committees that impact the mediation 
profession, notably designation standards, 
approvals and marketing; quality assurance; 
advocacy; organizational memberships; roster 
development; public information; 


ADRIA Volunteer coordinator. 
 
Actively monitor and 
nominate candidates to 
ADRIC committee, such as we 
have recently done with 
Education. 
 
Connect with and recognize 
the efforts of our volunteer 
committee members 


 


 


(4) Promote high academic and educational 
standards for academic and learning 
institutions that offer mediation training, 
currently and in the future; 


Seek out and engage with 
existing programs – Advisory 
Groups, presentations, 
collaborative sharing of 
information. 


Actively encourage the Centre 
of Excellence concept. 







o Seek to establish more degree granting and 
masters programs in ADR; 
o Encourage the introduction of post-
secondary credit programs in ADR that are 
accepted by multiple disciplines as 
enhancements to primary professions; 
o Link post-secondary ADR programs and 
courses to ADRIA, such that training credits 
are earned towards national entry-level 
designations; and 
o Encourage the establishment of an ADR 
Centre of Excellence at an Alberta post-
secondary institution. 


 
Currently on MRU AG 
 
Connect to specific 
occupational study programs 
(Law, HR, etc) 
 
Establish partnerships as 
practical with post-secondary 
institutions.   
 
Support ADRIC participation 
in recently established 
academic WG (title?) 
 


(5) Develop meaningful metrics for the 
evaluation of mediation programs, ideally on 
a national scale; and 


Gather supporting research 
and documentation as 
practical. 
 


Propose an ADRIC initiative 


(6) Encourage other ADR non-profits to 
endorse and contribute to this Advocacy for 
the Mediation Profession initiative; 
o Jointly develop pro-bono mediation policies 
that will serve to provide meaningful training 
and experience without devaluing the 
profession; and 
o Focus on relationships with the ACR, AFMS, 
FMC, ARJA, AFCC, FOAJ, NCSA, AAMS, CAB, 
CMCS, MRJC, to name but a few important 
ADR organizations active in Alberta. 


Continue active outreach, and 
increasingly engage Board 
members in this activity. 
 
Promote collaborative 
activities – conferences, 
luncheons, networking AND 
policy development. 
 
See out volunteer pro-bono 
opportunities in concert with 
policy development on this 
issue. 
 


 


E. ADRIA Resources and Membership   
(1) Provide feedback to the ADRIA 
membership on the Task Force White Paper 
Findings and Recommendations; 


Membership consultations 
and updates must continue. 


 


(2) Continue tracking compensation issues, 
ideally on a national scale through regular 
surveys and market analysis, in concert with 
engaged and relevant partners; 


Work with ADRIC and 
provincial partners to track. 
 
Engage an MBA student to 
conduct economic study 


 


 


(3) Seek out career and employment 
opportunities for trained mediators, including 
roster development and opportunities, and 
assist ADRIA to advise the membership; 


Webpage content to be 
developed. 
 
Practicum in Family 
Mediation recently 
established with GOA 
 


 







Support Community 
Mediation as an entry point 
for gaining experience. 


 
(4) Explore options for and feasibility of 
regulating the mediation profession in 
Alberta; 


Research the experiences of 
others eg HRPA, HRIA 
 
Consult with membership 
 
Discuss with Leadership (ADR 
Forum?) 
 
Member perspectives mixed – 
very important to some. 
 


Primarily a 2018 and beyond 
consideration  


(5) Celebrate volunteerism, including our 
members' generous pro-bono activities; 


ADRIA Volunteer Coordinator 
position? 
 
Annual recognition and/or 
award? 
 


 


(6) Continue the dialogue and transparency 
with members and students regarding: 
o the financial viability of mediation as a 
stand-alone profession; 
o mediation career pathways and resources 
available; and 
o the impact of pro-bono and low bono 
activities on the profession. 


ADRIA Policy and webpage on 
Pro-bono opportunities, 
cautions, overall Impact, etc. 
 
Continue current practice of 
upfront information to 
students. 
 
Develop candid webpage 
content. 
 


 


(7) Promote and enhance ADR Institute of 
Canada`s National Mediator designations; 
o Ensure that ADRIC and ADRIA are effectively 
communicating and positively influencing 
public awareness of the significance of 
National Designations, and that the demand 
for designated mediators is increased; 
o Consider unpaid and/or co-mediations as 
partial qualifications towards a Chartered 
Mediator (C.Med) designation; 
o Allow only designated members to be 
featured on ADRIC and ADRIA online 
Directories of professional mediators; and 
o Provide meaningful incentives to advance 
beyond the Q.Med designation. 


Effective Jan 2017 only those 
with designations are eligible 
for online directory.  ADRIC 
considering similar measures. 
 
Increase public-facing web 
content at ADRIA, ADRIC and 
all Affiliates. 
 
ADRIC and Affiliate 
consultations ongoing to 
refine designation criteria. 
 
ADRIC insurance discounts 
favour designations, and 
further favour Chartered 
status. 
 


 







ADRIA Instructors must be 
Chartered.  Coaches must be 
Q.Med qualified. 
 
Support ADRIC Marketing & 
Membership initiatives 
 


F.  Additional ADRIA Initiatives  
(not specified in the White Paper) 


  


   


   


 








Page 1 of 9 
 


Meeting Notes - MOU TASK FORCE WORKSHOP  


Friday October 14, 2016  


PARTICIPANTS: 


Andy Butt – ADRIC\ADRAtlantic X  
Anne Wallace -ADRSK-ADRIC 
Bill Hartnett – ADRIC Corp.  


Dolores Herman – ADRIA  
Eric Stutzman – ADRIM X 
Elton Simoes BCAMI  
Scott Siemens- ADRIC\ADRSask  


Thierry Beriault – 
ADRIC\IMAQ  
Wendy Scott – ADRAtlantic  


ED’s \Resource 
Janet McKay (ADRIC)  
Paul Conway (ADRIA)  
Susette Clunis (ADRIO)X 


MOU Task Force Members: 
Kathryn Munn (ADRIO\ Co-Chair)  
Mary Comeau (ADRIC -Corporate)  
Pierre Grenier (IMAQ)  
Ron Pizzo (ADR Atlantic) X 
Wendy Hassen (ADRIA\ADRIC Co-
Chair)  


SESSION OBJECTIVES: 


 Update ADRIC\Affiliate leaders on Task Force work to date and obtain ongoing support  


 Input\areas of consensus about what a Federation of Peers may look like and desired Roles 
and Responsibilities of each organization\group that is part of the “Federation “ 


 


1. Background and UPDATE on MOU TASK FORCE WORK DO DATE 


Kathryn and Wendy outlined the history of ADRIC and the Regions, the approach of the Task 


force to its work and draft content out for consultation  


 


Please see:  - Slide Presentation distributed to participants by e-mail October 15th   


- Appendix A below: Input received to date on draft MOU draft 


Background\Purpose\ Principles  


 


2. Group Discussion:  WHAT WOULD A FEDERATION OF PEERS LOOK LIKE? 


A  reference helpful to the Task Force’s Work is A Framework for Success for Non-profit 


Federations – Revised - Linda Mollenhauer  at http://theonn.ca/wp-


content/uploads/2012/05/Federations-Framework-for-Success-for-Nonprofit-Federations-


November-2009.pdf   


 


The group discussed the definition of a “Federation” in the Paper 


 


A network or partnership that serves a public good and includes a national or provincial 


organization, affiliate branches and/or some form of local and/or regional bodies that 


share a mission, brand and program model and have some legal independence from 


one another. 


 


Comments:  


 Legal “and Financial “Independence (Add financial)  
o Control of own organization’s budget  
o $$$ to National is an Affiliate expense  



http://theonn.ca/wp-content/uploads/2012/05/Federations-Framework-for-Success-for-Nonprofit-Federations-November-2009.pdf

http://theonn.ca/wp-content/uploads/2012/05/Federations-Framework-for-Success-for-Nonprofit-Federations-November-2009.pdf

http://theonn.ca/wp-content/uploads/2012/05/Federations-Framework-for-Success-for-Nonprofit-Federations-November-2009.pdf





Page 2 of 9 
 


o Operational independence within a framework  


 Is there “Interdependence” 
o Network and Partnership  


 Is the Title “Affiliate” or “Region”? 
o Prefer the term “Partner” 
o “some” Legal independence per the Linda Mollenhauer definition  


 Degree of Centralization?  


 This Paper may not apply to more corporate organizational frameworks 
 
The following “Success Factors” were identified in the Paper for not for profit Federations:  
 
 


 
 


  







Page 3 of 9 
 


Small Group Discussion  
 
3 small groups were formed who visited each of the questions below to share ideas – 
participants were invited to  ideas of other groups they liked.  Areas of possible consensus 
were noted by  by last group visiting the question  
 
The following are the flip chart notes recording ideas shared and a summary of any themes\consensus: 
 
1. WHAT SHOULD BE THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN AFFILIATES\REGIONS?  


o How would they be a “Federation of Peers”?  
 


Group Discussion:   


 Partners with similar goals  
o Discuss goals and differences 


 Collaborate where it is a “Mutual Member” benefit  


 Familial – “Siblingness” Sister Organizations  


 Independence  


 Neighbours – own house in the community – areas for the common good where we 
collaborate XX 


 How to involve ALL Affiliates? 


 Formally Describe the Relationship 


 Geographic – shared members – especially if located near  


 How compensate – so not just next door neighbours 


 How we build the whole block not just next door neighbours  


 Having Best Practices initiatives, already done elsewhere  


 Consistency – some core  


 Consistency that members can expect when they change regions  


  A NETWORK – not neighbours \communities  


  Business Partners, including  
o What conditions 
o Exit plan 
o Network  
o Franchise model (national controls everything   internet model – minimize national 


control 
 


(If ADRIC is the Federation – then this is what is between affiliates 
 
Affiliates Share INFORMATION – not because they “have to” but to find synergies  


 ADRIC’s role is to support and encourage this  
 


Summary 


The generally accepted idea in this section was to have independent regional organizations which 


collaborate for “mutual member” benefit.  The majority preferred the metaphor of community rather 


than neighbours, as a way to include all other affiliates not just those who are geographically close. 


There was much support for the idea of a network in which best practices, initiatives, & what has been 







Page 4 of 9 
 


done elsewhere are shared between affiliates.  Also there was support for the idea of consistency 


between affiliates so members who change regions know what they can expect.   


The exact nature of the inter-affiliate relationship needs to be defined.  One idea was to consider the 


analogy of business partners who have an agreement which includes conditions, exit plan, what the 


network will do. There was discussion about how much the national organization should control what 


the regions do –on a scale ranging from a franchise model where the national organization exerts a high 


degree of control to a model where regional organizations are mostly autonomous.   


 


2.  WHAT SHOULD BE THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN ADRIC AND AFFILIATES\REGIONS?   
o How might ADRIC be part of the Federation?  Should ADRIC be “First” among peers? Is 


ADRIC the framework through which the Affiliates and Corporate members collaborate? 
 
GROUP DISCUSSION: 


 Why Does ADRIC need to be part of the Federation?   


 ADRIC IS the Federation? 
o Never first amongst Peers 


 Distinct for Arbitration – a unique role – not 
the same  


 National\Inter consequence – corporate 
o Original Corporate and Regional model set the 


stage for current questions  
 


 Questions:  Network? Framework? Umbrella? Federation?   
o Question of Independence – INTER dependence  
o National Practice Standards 


  ESSENTIAL TO DEFINE exclusive and shared responsibilities 
of ADRIC - Regions - Corporate Members & HOW (they are 
implemented?) 


o WHOSE Members?  
o Coordinate and AVOID duplication of effort  
o Feedback Mechanisms  


 
SEMANTICS Are Important 
o ADIRC will have unique roles and responsibilities 


(Distinct role with Arbitration, Federation\Umbrella 
Role; National\Corporate)    CONVENOR 


 


Summary 


With 1 exception, the expression” First amongst Equals” was not popular on the surface.  The 


underlying concept, however, was more acceptable to all, with participants expressing a belief that 


some issues should be exclusively left to ADRIC to lead OR be a convener of any required 


consultations (possibilities were: leading the national collaborative agenda, defining ADR, 


representing the interests of corporate ADR, inter-provincial rosters.  Some supported ADRIC taking 


a lead role for International engagement – however at least 1 region indicated the importance of 


remaining unfettered in being able to operate internationally. 


 The brown triangle and the 


small circles represent seats 


on the full ADRIC Board of 


Directors (7 Affiliate, 7 


Corporate + 4 Ad-hoc) 


 The red and green subsets 


represent the MOU and the 


PRT (which draws attention 


to the question of how does 


corporate fit into the MOU?) 







Page 5 of 9 
 


While there was no clear consensus it seemed that Umbrella and Federation were viewed more 


favourably than Network or Framework (which were considered weaker). 


 


 HOW DO CORPORATE MEMBERS FIT IN? 


 What is the relationship between Corporate Members and Affiliates? 
 Is ADRIC responsible for representing Corporate Interests? If not, how are they 


represented? 
 
Notes from Group Discussions: 
 


 Not all Affiliates Have Corporate Members  


 Not understood by Affiliates 


 Membership versus Board representation  


 Corporate members are essential (?) – market perspective, strategy, both membership 
& Board  


 Corporate Members should be National  


 Conflicting values – corporate members versus individuals.  Corporate to build 
business and individuals for passion (ADR?)  Note: not all support this last comment)  


 Currently, no corporate members and affiliates – not consistent to moving forward  
 


Summary:   


General consensus to move forward with corporate members at the national level., 


both as members and on the board.  Those corporate members would be served by the 


various affiliates. 


 


3. WRAP UP AND NEXT STEPS: 
 
- Meeting notes will be distributed to Participants  


- Task Force needs commitment of all Boards to provide timely input  


- Next Task Force meeting set for October 27th   







Page 6 of 9 
 


Appendix A: MOU Task Force Draft Memorandum of Understanding: Background, Purpose and Objectives – V6: May 3, 2016  


(The following was circulated to ADRIC and Affiliates for comment in May 2016) 


DRAFT BACKGROUND: (NO Suggested changes)  


While ADRIC and the seven (7) ADR Regions are separate organizations, they have a joint, collaborative history and are structurally 


tied together.  In 1974, the Arbitrator's Institute of Canada Inc. (AIC) based in Ontario was formed.  Its goal was to act as a national 


center of information, education and research on arbitration and mediation.  Separate Regional organizations (whose members 


were also Mediators and Arbitrators) soon started forming:  Quebec (1977), BC (1980) and Alberta (1982). Discussions between 


national and regional leaders led to creation of the Arbitration and Mediation Institute (AMIC) in 1984.  The new AMIC Board 


consisted of one (1) representative from each region.  Regions agreed to collect a fee from their members to fund the national 


organization.   As part of this, AMIC Ontario was created to function as a separate organization (Ontario was previously served by 


AIC).   Additional Regional organizations developed in Saskatchewan (1987), Manitoba (1989) and Nova Scotia, which became the 


Atlantic region (? ???).  In 1996, the first Memorandums between AMIC and each region were signed, to “clarify their relationship 


and provide consistent integration”.  In 1994, a separate organization of Canadian corporations and law firms had come together 


to promote creative resolution of business disputes (the use of ADR).  Leaders of AMIC and Canadian Foundation for Dispute 


Resolution (CFDR) agreed to consolidate the two (2) organizations, which became the ADR Institute of Canada in August 2000.  


The goal of this union was to provide a forum to integrate ADR professionals with ADR users, combine resources to increase the 


profile and ability to promote ADR across the country and to provide greater ability to represent its members as the professional 


organization for ADR practitioners in Canada. 


 


 


 


 


 


  







Page 7 of 9 
 


DRAFT PURPOSE:   Input to Date (Sept 28, 2016) 


This Memorandum of Understanding sets out the 


relationships among:  


 ADR Atlantic Institute (ADRAI); 


 ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA); 


 ADR Institute of British Columbia (ADRIBC); 


[new name pending] 


 ADR Institute of Canada Inc. (ADRIC); 


 ADR Institute of Manitoba (ADRIM); 


 ADR Institute of Ontario (ADRIO); 


 ADR Institute of Saskatchewan Inc. (ADRSK); 


 Institut de médiation et d’arbitrage du Québec 


(IMAQ). 


We are a national federation of peers. 


We share the following objectives: 


 Increase the understanding and use of ADR by the 


public, business, academia and government; 


 Ensure excellence and quality in the practice of 


ADR, including expansion of the recognition and use 


of ADR professional designations; 


 Provide excellent services to our members. 


ADR ATLANTIC:   
 
No objections to the work so far. The Board has taken no issue with the drafts 
created so far and feels positive about the progress – they recognize the 
massive work that will be expended to make this work. The delay is not a 
surprise and does not create any concern either. 
 
All of the discussion was positive (for example the core membership categories 
are considered a positive step). 


ADRIM:  


Oughtn't we to form the ambition to be THE Canada based NGO voice for ADR 
internationally?  
 
We believe that ADR Practices build a better and healthier province. 


Our purpose: We exist to transform dispute resolution culture in Manitoba 


by... 


 Promoting ADR 


 Sharing knowledge 


 Providing training 


 Credentialing 


 Being “the hub” for ADR in Manitoba or connecting the ADR 


Community to each other and their clients in Manitoba. 


ADRSASK:  
Under the heading of "Purpose", the statement is made that we are a 
"Federation of Peers".  ADRSK endorses this ideal and wishes to add further 
context that ADRIC be recognised as "First Among Equals". Though many 
references throughout the documents recognise the national / international / 
inter-affiliate role of ADRIC, we felt it would be important to formally state the 
generic primacy of the National umbrella entity under whose banner all 
affiliates operate, thrive, and benefit from.   
 







Page 8 of 9 
 


DRAFT PURPOSE:   Input to Date (Sept 28, 2016) 


Strong affirmation for the work thus far, continued desire for ongoing 
consultation, and recognition this work is best done slowly with unanimity and 
resolve 
 
ADRIA: THE ADRIA BOARD explored how to explain the relationship with 
Affiliates-ADRIC and Corporate Members– here are some concepts  
 


 Scope:  Together, the Affiliates and ADRIC are a national and international 
organization, with ADRIC playing the leading role in the advancement of 
corporate ADR interests.  While each Affiliate oversees its own geographic 
territory, ADRIC oversees matters of National or International interest to 
the Affiliates. 


 


 The Affiliates (collectively) are a national federation of peers operating 
collaboratively within the ADRIC umbrella (OR operating collaboratively as 
an integral part of ADRIC?)  The Affiliates collaborate and influence the 
governance of ADRIC through their representatives to the ADRIC Board of 
Directors and the Presidents' Round Table (PRT), in addition to the many 
standing or ad-hoc committees that report to ADRIC and/or the PRT. 


To Sum up:  


 Are the AFFILIATES (not including ADRIC) a federation of peers? And 
ADRIC is the Framework through which the Affiliates collaborate? 


 Is ADRIC the framework through which the Affiliates and Corporate 
members collaborate? 


 Is ADRIC responsible for representing Corporate Interests? 


 ADRIC would take the lead in National and International initiatives  


 







Page 9 of 9 
 


 


DRAFT GUIDING PRINCIPLES: Input to Date (Sept 28, 2016) 


National Scope: We are a national organization. We focus on achieving our objectives 


across Canada. 


ADRIA: 
Change: We are a national organization. We focus 
on achieving our objectives across Canada TO:   We 
work together within a national framework to 
achieve our objectives across Canada.  
(Rationale:  Current wording does not accurately 
reflect the scope and structure of ADRIC and 
Affiliates) 


Diversity: We value our diversity.  We recognize our uniqueness, including variations 
in nature, size, finances and other resources, geography, business focus, language and 
kinds of members represented.  We respect our differences and our autonomy within 
our federation. 


 


Collaboration: Collaboration is our strength. We look for creative ways to collaborate 
to achieve our objectives. We leverage our strengths, rather than duplicating our 
efforts.  We avoid actual or perceived competition with one another. We provide 
consistent, unified and complementary messages to our members, their clients and 
the public.   


 


Transparency:  We communicate openly and honestly. We share information 
willingly. We consult one another on matters of mutual interest and where our 
decisions may affect each other.  


 


Mutual Accountability:  We are clear about our distinct roles and responsibilities. We 
create sound and effective structures (including this Memorandum of Understanding) 
and processes to frame and build our relationships.  We support each other. We 
honour our commitments to each other. We use ADR practices in resolving issues 
among ourselves. 


 


Other:  ADRIA:  Add a new principle “RESPECT”  


 








*10000000/00049/2005031/v1 


 


GUIDELINES FOR ADRIC REGIONAL AFFILIATES – NATIONAL BOARD 
REPRESENTATION 


 
I. INTRODUCTION 
 
The ADR Institute of Canada, Inc. (“ADRIC”) is a national not-for-profit corporation 
governed by the Canada Not-for-Profit Corporations Act, S.C. 2009, c. 23, as amended 
(the “Act”).  ADRIC is governed by the Act and ADRIC’s board of directors (the 
“National Board”) must also comply with ADRIC’s general by-law No. 1 (the “By-
laws”), a copy of which is made available to all incoming ADRIC directors (the 
“Directors”).  Among other things, the Act and the By-laws mandate the election of 
most of the Directors, including those elected by ADRIC’s regional affiliates (the 
“Affiliates”).   
 
Specifically, each of the seven (7) Affiliates1 is entitled under the By-law to elect one 
Director from the affiliate to the National Board.  (In addition, the corporate members 
of ADRIC are entitled to elect seven (7) Directors to the National Board.  The National 
Board is also entitled to appoint up to four (4) additional Directors.  The maximum 
number of Directors possible under the By-laws is therefore 18.) 
 
II. PURPOSE 
 
These guidelines have been prepared to assist each Affiliate as it prepares to elect its 
Director to the National Board.   
 
III. ELECTION TO THE NATIONAL BOARD 
 
A.  To comply with the Act and the By-laws, each Affiliate must elect a Director to the 
National Board.   This election should be carried out at the Affiliate’s annual general 
meeting (an “AGM”), or at a duly convened special meeting of the Affiliate’s members.  
The Director should not be appointed to the National Board, whether by the Affiliate’s 
board or the membership.  To comply with the mandatory requirements of both the 
Act and the By-laws, the Director should be duly elected by the Affiliate’s 
membership2.  
 


Some Affiliates have developed the practice of having their President serve as its 
Director on the National Board.  This is entirely satisfactory.  However, to comply with 
the Act and the By-laws, Affiliates should elect President and the Director separately, 
even if both roles are filled by the same person. 
 


                                                 
1   British Columbia (ADRBC), Alberta (ADRIA), Saskatchewan (ADRSK), Manitoba (ADRIM), Ontario 


(ADRIO), Quebec (IMAQ”), and Atlantic (ADRAI) 


 
2    Currently, all Affiliate elections of Directors to the National Board are held in the Spring at their 


respective AGMs.  ADRIC requests that the Affiliates continue to follow this practice if at all possible 


recognizing the Director-elect will only take office at the ADRIC AGM normally held in the Fall. 







*10000000/00049/2005031/v1 


 


Incoming Directors formally assume their position on the National Board concurrent 
with the ADRIC AGM held in October each year.  Affiliates are therefore expected 
to advise the ED of their elected representative by the end of September so 
materials can be prepared for the AGM and the National Board meeting that follows 
immediately after the AGM.  (If an Affiliate representative vacancy occurs before the 
October AGM, every effort will be made to enable the incoming Director (having been 
elected by the Affiliate’s board to fill this vacancy) to assume her or his formal 
position on the National Board as soon as possible.) 
 
B.  All Directors are expected to conduct themselves in the best interests of ADRIC at 
all times while serving on the National Board.  While they bring local knowledge and 
helpful insights about the Affiliate and its region of the country, Directors are 
expected firstly, and above all else, to carry out their duties for the advancement of 
ADRIC and its goals everywhere in Canada.  This means that a candidate for election 
to the National Board should be demonstrably capable of considering the broader 
interests of the national body, the national membership, and those of other Affiliates, 
and not just advancing the interests of the Affiliate she or he represents. 
 
C.  Directors are also naturally under a duty to ADRIC to act: 
 


i) honestly and in good faith; and 
 


ii) with the care, diligence, and skill of a reasonably prudent person. 
 
Please bear these qualities in mind when electing your Director. 
 
D. Directors are volunteers and do not receive remuneration.  However, some 
expenses (such as travel and accommodations associated with participating in 
National Board meetings) are reimbursed in accordance with the By-laws and ADRIC 
operating policies. 
 
E. To ensure an appropriate level of continuity on the Board, ADRIC asks that 
Affiliates and candidates generally consider Director commitments of at least three 
(3) years on the National Board, even if the election of the Director is conducted 
annually by the Affiliate.   
 
IV. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF ADRIC DIRECTORS 
 
A.  The duties and responsibilities of the National Board are outlined in the By-laws, 
and National Board Manual, and are summarized in an ADRIC document entitled 
Terms of Reference for the Board of Directors.  All incoming Directors receive a copy of 
each.   
 
B.  Directors are expected to maintain all the usual confidences associated with being 
on any board of directors.  For example, all Directors are expected to absolutely 
refrain from circulating outside the National Board meeting agendas, minutes, 







*10000000/00049/2005031/v1 


 


reports, and documents related to National Board or ADRIC committee business. 
Directors are also expected to maintain cabinet solidarity.  It is not the role of a 
Director on the National Board to report on sensitive material or national matters at 
the Affiliate level, beyond what is authorized by the National Board or what appears 
in the minutes of the National Board.  All National Board minutes, once approved, are 
shared with the Affiliates. 
 
C.  All Directors are expected to participate in at least two (2) ADRIC committees.   
 
D.  Directors have duties under the By-laws to disclose the nature and extent of any 
conflict of interest. 
 
E.  The National Board maintains industry-appropriate directors’ liability insurance. 
 
 








 1:00 PM


 15/11/16


 Accrual Basis


 ADR Institute of Alberta


 Budget
 January through December 2017


Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 TOTAL


Income


4000 · Membership Revenue


4010 · Membership Fees


4011 · Full Member 12,685.00 10,325.00 23,895.00 14,160.00 5,015.00 7,375.00 5,015.00 8,555.00 13,275.00 5,310.00 6,785.00 5,605.00 118,000.00


4012 · Associate Member 3,125.00 2,500.00 1,125.00 1,125.00 2,000.00 2,875.00 1,500.00 2,375.00 2,125.00 1,875.00 2,000.00 1,625.00 24,250.00


4013 · Retired Member 75.00 0.00 0.00 75.00 0.00 150.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 75.00 0.00 75.00 450.00


4014 · Affiliate 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


4015 · Administration Fee 1,000.00 700.00 1,050.00 300.00 450.00 850.00 400.00 650.00 950.00 550.00 700.00 500.00 8,100.00


4016 · Less ADRI Dues -3,870.00 -3,150.00 -7,290.00 -4,320.00 -1,530.00 -2,250.00 -1,530.00 -2,610.00 -4,050.00 -1,620.00 -2,070.00 -1,710.00 -36,000.00


4010 · Membership Fees - Other 0.00


Total 4010 · Membership Fees 13,015.00 10,375.00 18,780.00 11,340.00 5,935.00 9,000.00 5,385.00 8,970.00 12,300.00 6,190.00 7,415.00 6,095.00 114,800.00


4020 · Directory 693.00 693.00 693.00 693.00 693.00 693.00 693.00 693.00 693.00 693.00 693.00 693.00 8,316.00


4030 · Advertising 0.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 2,000.00


4040 · Marketing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


4050 · Networking 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 600.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00


4000 · Membership Revenue - Other 0.00


Total 4000 · Membership Revenue 13,708.00 11,068.00 19,673.00 12,233.00 7,428.00 9,893.00 6,278.00 9,863.00 13,193.00 7,683.00 8,308.00 6,988.00 126,316.00


4100 · ADR Business Services


4110 · CAMVAP 11,440.00 4,940.00 4,940.00 4,940.00 4,940.00 4,940.00 4,940.00 4,940.00 4,940.00 4,940.00 4,940.00 4,940.00 65,780.00


4120 · Corporate Member 500.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 4,000.00


4130 · National Rules 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 9,000.00


4140 · Roster Administration 300.00 300.00 440.00 440.00 440.00 440.00 440.00 440.00 440.00 440.00 440.00 440.00 5,000.00


4150 · Outsourcing (PADR's) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


4160 · ADR Centre Administration 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


4170 · DRN Conference 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


4100 · ADR Business Services - Other 0.00


Total 4100 · ADR Business Services 12,990.00 5,990.00 7,130.00 6,130.00 7,130.00 6,130.00 6,130.00 7,130.00 6,130.00 6,130.00 6,130.00 6,630.00 83,780.00


 Page 1 of 7







 1:00 PM


 15/11/16


 Accrual Basis


 ADR Institute of Alberta


 Budget
 January through December 2017


Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 TOTAL


4200 · Professional Dev & Education


4210 · Certificate Programs 23,600.00 28,400.00 39,600.00 38,400.00 36,000.00 0.00 34,000.00 0.00 16,200.00 37,000.00 36,000.00 0.00 289,200.00


4215 · ADRIC License 0.00 0.00 -5,844.00 0.00 -5,844.00 0.00 -2,922.00 0.00 0.00 -2,922.00 -5,844.00 0.00 -23,376.00


4215 · BCAMI License 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00


4220 · Specialty & Professional Dev 0.00 7,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 16,200.00


4230 · Contract Training 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00


4240 · Public Training 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


4250 · Conference 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00


4260 · Designation & Accreditation


4261 · Application Fee 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,700.00


4262 · Assessments 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 275.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,775.00


4263 · Equivalency 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


4260 · Designation & Accreditation - Other 0.00


Total 4260 · Designation & Accreditation 500.00 500.00 500.00 4,100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 275.00 5,600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,475.00


4200 · Professional Dev & Education - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


Total 4200 · Professional Dev & Education 24,100.00 41,100.00 34,256.00 49,000.00 40,156.00 14,000.00 31,078.00 275.00 21,800.00 40,578.00 30,156.00 0.00 326,499.00


4900 · Other Income


4920 · Interest Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


4910 · Donations 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


4930 · Miscellaneous Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


4940 · Rental Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


4900 · Other Income - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


Total 4900 · Other Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


Total Income 50,798.00 58,158.00 61,059.00 67,363.00 54,714.00 30,023.00 43,486.00 17,268.00 41,123.00 54,391.00 44,594.00 13,618.00 536,595.00


 Page 2 of 7







 1:00 PM


 15/11/16


 Accrual Basis


 ADR Institute of Alberta


 Budget
 January through December 2017


Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 TOTAL


Expense


5000 · Member Expense


5010 · Directory 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5020 · Marketing/Promotion Materials 175.00 175.00 175.00 175.00 175.00 175.00 175.00 175.00 175.00 175.00 175.00 175.00 2,100.00


5030 · Networking 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00


5090 · Staff Support 3,437.00 3,437.00 3,437.00 3,437.00 3,437.00 3,437.00 3,437.00 3,437.00 3,437.00 3,437.00 3,437.00 3,437.00 41,244.00


5000 · Member Expense - Other 0.00


Total 5000 · Member Expense 3,612.00 3,612.00 3,612.00 3,612.00 4,112.00 3,612.00 3,612.00 3,612.00 3,612.00 4,112.00 3,612.00 3,612.00 44,344.00


5100 · ADR Business Service


5110 · CAMVAP 5,095.00 4,445.00 4,445.00 4,445.00 4,445.00 4,445.00 4,445.00 4,445.00 4,445.00 4,445.00 4,445.00 4,445.00 53,990.00


5120 · Corporate Membership 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5130 · National Rules 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5140 · Roster Administration 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5150 · Outsourcing (PADR's) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5160 · ADR Centre Administration 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5170 · DRN Conference 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5190 · Staff Support 2,458.00 2,458.00 2,458.00 2,458.00 2,458.00 2,458.00 2,458.00 2,458.00 2,458.00 2,458.00 2,458.00 2,458.00 29,496.00


5100 · ADR Business Service - Other 0.00


Total 5100 · ADR Business Service 7,553.00 6,903.00 6,903.00 6,903.00 6,903.00 6,903.00 6,903.00 6,903.00 6,903.00 6,903.00 6,903.00 6,903.00 83,486.00


 Page 3 of 7







 1:00 PM


 15/11/16


 Accrual Basis


 ADR Institute of Alberta


 Budget
 January through December 2017


Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 TOTAL


5200 · Professional Development & Educ


5210 · Certificate Programs


5211 · Instructor Fees 9,550.00 13,050.00 14,600.00 13,050.00 12,150.00 0.00 13,050.00 0.00 5,550.00 15,400.00 12,100.00 0.00 108,500.00


5212 · Facility Rentals 1,488.00 1,938.00 2,238.00 2,088.00 1,788.00 1,090.00 1,090.00 1,090.00 1,540.00 2,290.00 1,990.00 1,090.00 19,720.00


5213 · Program Materials 790.00 510.00 510.00 1,110.00 420.00 0.00 580.00 0.00 510.00 490.00 600.00 0.00 5,520.00


5214 · Parking/Mileage/Travel 119.00 175.00 182.00 154.00 105.00 0.00 175.00 0.00 63.00 182.00 154.00 0.00 1,309.00


5215 · Courier 25.00 50.00 75.00 50.00 50.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 25.00 50.00 50.00 0.00 375.00


5216 · Course Design 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5217 · License Fee 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00


5218 · Instructor Development 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5219 · Staff Support 3,156.00 3,156.00 3,156.00 3,156.00 3,156.00 3,156.00 3,156.00 3,156.00 3,156.00 3,156.00 3,156.00 3,156.00 37,872.00


5210 · Certificate Programs - Other 0.00


Total 5210 · Certificate Programs 17,128.00 18,879.00 20,761.00 19,608.00 17,669.00 4,246.00 18,051.00 4,246.00 10,844.00 21,568.00 18,050.00 4,246.00 175,296.00


5220 · Specialty & Prof Development


5221 · Instructor Fees 0.00 4,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,000.00


5222 · Facility Rentals 0.00 600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 600.00


5223 · Program Materials 0.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 600.00


5226 · Course Design 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5229 · Staff Support 1,591.00 1,591.00 1,591.00 1,591.00 1,591.00 1,591.00 1,591.00 1,591.00 1,591.00 1,591.00 1,591.00 1,591.00 19,092.00


5220 · Specialty & Prof Development - Other 0.00


Total 5220 · Specialty & Prof Development 1,591.00 6,491.00 1,591.00 1,591.00 1,591.00 6,891.00 1,591.00 1,591.00 1,591.00 1,591.00 1,591.00 1,591.00 29,292.00


5230 · Contract Training


5231 · Instructor Fees 0.00 2,200.00 0.00 2,200.00 0.00 2,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,200.00 0.00 0.00 8,800.00


5233 · Program Material 0.00 300.00 0.00 300.00 0.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00


5234 · Parking/Mileage/Travel 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5235 · Courier 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5236 · Course Design 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00


5238 · MTI Materials 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5239 · Staff Support 1,244.00 1,244.00 1,244.00 1,244.00 1,244.00 1,244.00 1,244.00 1,244.00 1,244.00 1,244.00 1,244.00 1,244.00 14,928.00


5230 · Contract Training - Other 0.00


 Page 4 of 7







 1:00 PM


 15/11/16


 Accrual Basis


 ADR Institute of Alberta


 Budget
 January through December 2017


Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 TOTAL


Total 5230 · Contract Training 1,244.00 4,744.00 1,244.00 4,744.00 1,244.00 4,744.00 1,244.00 1,244.00 1,244.00 4,744.00 1,244.00 1,244.00 28,928.00


5240 · Public Training 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5250 · Conference


5251 · Conference Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5259 · Staff Support 1,376.00 1,376.00 1,376.00 1,376.00 1,376.00 1,376.00 1,376.00 1,376.00 1,376.00 1,376.00 1,376.00 1,376.00 16,512.00


5250 · Conference - Other 0.00


Total 5250 · Conference 1,376.00 1,376.00 1,376.00 1,376.00 1,376.00 1,376.00 1,376.00 1,376.00 1,376.00 1,376.00 1,376.00 1,376.00 16,512.00


5260 · Designations & Accreditation


5261 · Assessments & Roleplays 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 275.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,775.00


5264 · Parking/Mileage/Travel 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5269 · Staff Support 1,093.00 1,093.00 1,093.00 1,093.00 1,093.00 1,093.00 1,093.00 1,093.00 1,093.00 1,093.00 1,093.00 1,093.00 13,116.00


5260 · Designations & Accreditation - Other 0.00


Total 5260 · Designations & Accreditation 1,593.00 1,593.00 1,593.00 1,593.00 1,093.00 1,093.00 1,093.00 1,368.00 1,593.00 1,093.00 1,093.00 1,093.00 15,891.00


5200 · Professional Development & Educ - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


Total 5200 · Professional Development & Educ 22,932.00 33,083.00 26,565.00 28,912.00 22,973.00 18,350.00 23,355.00 9,825.00 16,648.00 30,372.00 23,354.00 9,550.00 265,919.00


 Page 5 of 7







 1:00 PM


 15/11/16


 Accrual Basis


 ADR Institute of Alberta


 Budget
 January through December 2017


Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 TOTAL


5700 · General & Administrative


5706 · Amortization 0.00 0.00 636.00 0.00 0.00 636.00 0.00 0.00 636.00 0.00 0.00 636.00 2,544.00


5708 · Bank Chgs, Int & Merchant Fees 979.00 979.00 979.00 979.00 979.00 979.00 979.00 979.00 979.00 980.00 980.00 980.00 11,751.00


5710 · CAMVAP Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5712 · Computer Equipment/Software 33.00 33.00 33.00 34.00 33.00 68.00 33.00 34.00 33.00 33.00 173.00 34.00 574.00


5714 · Conference Attendance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00


5716 · Contract 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5718 · Copying (Administrative Use) 350.00 0.00 0.00 350.00 0.00 0.00 350.00 0.00 0.00 350.00 0.00 0.00 1,400.00


5720 · Courier 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5721 · Donation 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5722 · Employee Burden 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5724 · Equipment Rental Leasing 780.00 0.00 136.00 780.00 0.00 136.00 780.00 0.00 136.00 780.00 0.00 136.00 3,664.00


5728 · Insurance 241.00 242.00 241.00 242.00 241.00 242.00 241.00 242.00 241.00 242.00 241.00 242.00 2,898.00


5730 · IT Development 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5732 · IT Maintenance 275.00 275.00 275.00 275.00 275.00 275.00 275.00 275.00 275.00 275.00 275.00 275.00 3,300.00


5734 · Legal and General Council 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5736 · Meeting Expense 75.00 75.00 75.00 75.00 75.00 75.00 75.00 75.00 75.00 75.00 75.00 75.00 900.00


5738 · Mmbship, subscrip, books, event 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 600.00


5742 · Office Supplies 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 6,000.00


5746 · Postage 50.00 200.00 0.00 200.00 50.00 200.00 50.00 200.00 50.00 200.00 0.00 200.00 1,400.00


5748 · Printing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5750 · Professional and Audit Fees 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 8,000.00


5756 · Rent Edmonton 1,037.00 1,038.00 1,037.00 1,038.00 1,037.00 1,089.00 1,089.00 2,189.00 1,089.00 1,089.00 1,089.00 1,089.00 13,910.00


5758 · Staff Development 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


5760 · Staff Events & Gifts 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 600.00


5764 · Telephone and Internet 385.00 385.00 385.00 385.00 385.00 385.00 385.00 385.00 385.00 385.00 385.00 385.00 4,620.00


5766 · Telephone - Cell 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 1,800.00


5768 · Travel 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 1,800.00


5790 · Staff Support 2,115.00 2,115.00 2,115.00 2,115.00 2,115.00 2,115.00 2,115.00 2,115.00 2,115.00 2,115.00 2,115.00 2,115.00 25,380.00


5791 · Employee CPP/EI 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 6,000.00


5793 · Vacation Expense 90.00 90.00 90.00 90.00 90.00 90.00 90.00 90.00 90.00 90.00 90.00 90.00 1,080.00


5700 · General & Administrative - Other 0.00


Total 5700 · General & Administrative 7,810.00 6,832.00 9,402.00 7,963.00 6,680.00 9,690.00 7,862.00 7,984.00 11,504.00 8,014.00 6,823.00 9,657.00 100,221.00


 Page 6 of 7







 1:00 PM


 15/11/16


 Accrual Basis


 ADR Institute of Alberta


 Budget
 January through December 2017


Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 TOTAL


5900 · Governance


5910 · Annual General Meeting 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00


5920 · Board Meeting and Travel 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00


5930 · Board Committees and Projects 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 1,200.00


5940 · Insurance 188.00 189.00 188.00 189.00 188.00 189.00 188.00 189.00 188.00 189.00 188.00 189.00 2,262.00


5990 · Staff Support 2,215.00 2,215.00 2,215.00 2,215.00 2,215.00 2,215.00 2,215.00 2,215.00 2,215.00 2,215.00 2,215.00 2,215.00 26,580.00


5900 · Governance - Other 0.00


Total 5900 · Governance 3,503.00 3,504.00 3,503.00 3,504.00 3,503.00 5,504.00 3,503.00 3,504.00 3,503.00 3,504.00 2,503.00 2,504.00 42,042.00


6000 · Uncategorized Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


Total Expense 45,410.00 53,934.00 49,985.00 50,894.00 44,171.00 44,059.00 45,235.00 31,828.00 42,170.00 52,905.00 43,195.00 32,226.00 536,012.00


Net Income 5,388.00 4,224.00 11,074.00 16,469.00 10,543.00 -14,036.00 -1,749.00 -14,560.00 -1,047.00 1,486.00 1,399.00 -18,608.00 583.00


 Page 7 of 7








November 15, 2016 1:12PM ADR Institute of Alberta


BUSINESS UNIT REPORT


Budget 2016 and Budget 2017


2016 2017


Budget Budget


Governance


Less: Direct Costs $45,455 $42,042


Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 5% 0 0


Total Governance -$45,455 -$42,042


Membership $115,455 $126,316


Less: Direct Costs 48,376 44,344


Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 25% 0 0


Net Profit (Loss) Membership $67,079 $81,972


ADR Business Services $87,800 $83,780


Less: Direct Cost 82,676 83,486


Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 10% 0 0


Net Profit (Loss) ADR Business Services $5,124 $294


PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT


Certificate Programs $319,980 $268,824


Less: Direct Costs 198,330 175,296


Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 25% 0 0


Net Profit (Loss) Certificate Programs $121,650 $93,528


Specialty & Professional  Dev $38,100 $16,200


Less: Direct Costs 43,990 29,292


Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 10% 0 0


Net Profit (Loss) Specialty & Professional Dev -$5,890 -$13,092


Contract Training $34,200 $20,000


Less: Direct Costs 31,080 28,928


Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 10% 0 0


Net Profit (Loss) Contract Training $3,120 -$8,928


Conference $25,000 $10,000


Less: Direct Costs 47,100 16,512


Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 10% 0 0


Net Profit (Loss) Conference -$22,100 -$6,512


Designation & Accreditation $8,550 $11,475


Less: Direct Costs 13,540 15,891


Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 5% 0 0


Net Profit (Loss) Designation & Accreditation -$4,990 -$4,416


Revenue Other Income $0 $0


Total Revenue $629,085 $536,595


Total Expense 510,547 435,791


Net Profit (Loss) $118,538 $100,804








MEMORANDUM OF CO-OPERATION AND UNDERSTANDING 


This Memorandum of Co-operation and Understanding (this “MOU”) is made this  day of 


October 2016 by and between 


ADR INSTITUTE OF ALBERTA (“ADRIA”) 


and 


ISMAILI CONCILIATION AND ARBITRATION BOARD FOR CANADA (“NCAB”), 


the parties together being referred to herein as the “Parties”. 


PREAMBLE 


1. WHEREAS ADRIA desires to be a strong and vibrant Appropriate Dispute Resolution 


(“ADR”) membership organization, and a proud affiliate of the ADR Institute of Canada 


(“ADRIC”), is recognized for advancing excellence in the field of ADR, its practice and its 


professionals, and provides leadership and services to its members and the public by fostering 


understanding of, and excellence in, ADR (including negotiation, mediation, arbitration and 


restorative practices) and maintaining accreditation standards, accountability and designations 


for the ADR profession in Alberta. 


2. WHEREAS NCAB and its regional Conciliation and Arbitration Boards (“RCAB”), provide 


voluntary ADR to the community (where at least one party is from the Ismaili community) 


consistent with the internationally recognized standards of ADR training, professional practice, 


ethics and credentials, and consistent with the Islamic tradition of resolving disputes and 


differences through voluntary ADR processes in a cost-effective, confidential, and culturally 


sensitive environment in accordance with the laws of Canada. 


3. WHEREAS ADRIA and NCAB desire to foster and strengthen their relationship and to 


enhance their joint and separate endeavours to improve the role that the Parties play in 


promoting and delivering ADR and in providing recognizing standards of ADR training, 


professional practice, ethics and credentials with a view to assist their respective members and 


the public, including the Ismaili community, to enhance unity, harmony and well-being. 


4. WHEREAS ADRIA and NCAB affirm their shared desire to learn from each other and 


cooperate on mutual beneficial endeavours relating to ADR. 


NOW THEREFORE the Parties enter into this MOU to explore opportunities for collaborating 


further and learning from each other in fields of mutual interest, such as ADR, training and 


development, so as to further their common goal of enhancing and assisting the lives of their 


constituency based on the principles of mutual benefit and reciprocity. 


1.  Identifying Projects and Programs 


The Parties shall endeavour to identify suitable projects or programs on which they may work 


together in furtherance of their shared objectives as set forth in the recitals above.  Where the 


Parties choose to engage in projects or programs together, they may enter into agreements that 







- 2 - 


provide details concerning specific commitments to be made by each Party, as well as provisions 


related to project design, development, implementation, monitoring and reporting. 


2.  Roles 


ADRIA will be available as a partner for NCAB (and any RCAB as designated by NCAB) 


initiatives, including training and development.  ADRIA will: 


(a) provide membership benefits and accreditation privileges, as set out in Appendix A, as may 


be amended from time to time; 


(b) collaborate with NCAB to promote ADR for resolving conflict; 


(c) collaborate with NCAB to ensure the highest quality training to its members, by sharing 


best practices in ADR; 


(d) collaborate with NCAB to encourage its members to obtain professional designations; 


(e) collaborate with NCAB to develop creative ways of enhancing and implementing ADR; 


NCAB will be available as a partner for ADRIA initiatives, including training and development.  


NCAB, and any designated RCAB, will: 


(a) collaborate with ADRIA to promote ADR for resolving conflict; 


(b) collaborate with ADRIA to ensure the highest quality training to its members, by sharing 


best practices in ADR, including dispute prevention, moving past conflict and post-


settlement assistance; 


(c) collaborate with ADRIA to encourage its members to obtain professional designations; 


(d) collaborate with ADRIA to develop creative ways of enhancing and implementing ADR; 


(e) assist ADRIA through the participation and collaboration of RCAB Edmonton and RCAB 


Prairies in Alberta, as designated by NCAB. 


3.  Steering Committee 


A joint Steering Committee shall be established consisting of senior members of the Parties, with 


the aim of reviewing progress under this MOU.  The Steering Committee shall also suggest areas 


of future action and opportunities for partnership between the Parties.  The Steering Committee 


shall endeavour to meet at least once a year, and more frequently if required.  The Steering 


Committee shall be comprised of up to three members appointed by NCAB, and up to three 


members appointed by ADRIA. 


4.  Representatives for the Purposes of this MOU. 


The following persons are representatives of the Parties for the purposes of sending or receiving 


notices under this MOU: 







- 3 - 


For ADRIA: 


ADR Institute for Alberta 


Room CE 223A - Ralph King Athletic Centre 


Concordia University of Edmonton Campus  


7128 Ada Boulevard  


Edmonton, AB  T5B 4E4 


Attention: Executive Director 


For NCAB: 


Ismaili Conciliation and Arbitration Board for Canada 


Ismaili Centre Toronto 


49 Wynford Drive,  


Toronto, ON  M3C 1K1 


Attention:  Chairman, NCAB or authorized designate 


5.  Settlement of Differences 


Any differences between ADRIA and NCAB arising out of the interpretation or application of the 


present MOU shall be settled amicably by agreement. 


6.  Coming into effect.  Renewal and Amendment of this MOU 


This MOU shall come into effect immediately upon signature by the Parties and shall remain in 


full force and effect for a period of five years, and can be renewed by common consent of the 


Parties.  It may be amended at any time by mutual consent of the Parties.  Each Party may decide 


to terminate this MOU by notifying that decision to the other Party within 30 days written notice. 


Signed in Edmonton, Alberta this  day of October 2016, 


For ADRIA 


   


  Dolores Herman, President 


 


   


  Paul Conway, Executive Director 


 


For NCAB 


   


  Karim Sunderji, Chairman 


 


  







- 4 - 


APPENDIX A 


MEMBERSHIP BENEFITS AND ACCREDITATION PRIVILEGES PROVIDED BY ADRIA 


1. organizational ADRIA membership, at no cost, for NCAB and RCAB; 


2. affiliate membership, at no cost, for all consenting members and active alumni of NCAB 


and RCAB; 


3. “Member pricing” and access to all ADRIA training and events for members and active 


alumni of NCAB and RCAB, without the requirement of holding an individual ADRIA 


membership; 


4. a further reduction of 10% in the course costs wherever a group of three or more members 


or active alumni of NCAB and RCAB register as a group for an ADRIA training program; 


5. permission to use the ADRIA name, logo and web and print publications related to ADR 


services and publications in appropriate initiatives undertaken by NCAB or RCAB; 


6. recognition as a strategic partner on the ADRIA website and other ADRIA events or 


publications as appropriate, after obtaining permission from NCAB; 


7. exposure and greater public awareness through ADRIA communications and events, 


including newsletters, website, conferences, etc.; 


8. collaboration to explore the opportunity for further organizational or administrative cost-


reduction initiatives; 


9. waiver of the $50 initial administrative fee for all new ADRIA individual members, full or 


associate, for interested members and active alumni of NCAB and RCAB; 


10. a $50 per year reduction in the cost of a full ADRIA membership, which includes members 


in ADRIC; 


11. a $100 reduction in the cost of an ADRIC professional designation application. 








2016 INTERNATIONAL MEDIATION & ADR SURVEY 
CEN S US OF  CON F L ICT  MAN AGEMENT S TAKEHOLDERS AN D TR EN DS  
INTERNATIONAL MEDIATION INSTITUTE 
 
 


Professional Mediation Worldwide: 
Promoting Consensus and Access To Justice 







IN
TRO


DU
CTIO


N 


Deborah Masucci 
Chair, International Mediation Institute 
Former Head of American International Group Inc’s (AIG) Dispute Resolution 
Program 


In 2017, the International Mediation 
Institute (IMI) celebrates its 10th 
anniversary. As many of us who work in a 
service industry know, in order to remain 
relevant, you must know your customer 
and be adaptable to change direction to 
meet your customers’ needs. This strategic 
approach is no different in the conflict 
management and resolution space.  
 
Since its inception, IMI developed global 
competency standards for mediators, 
mediation advocates, intercultural dispute 
resolution, and most recently investor 
state mediators. Each was a progression 
based on the needs of the dispute 
resolution community. But is that enough? 
Should IMI broaden its mandate? If so, 
how does IMI add value to the field? 
 
We started this discovery stage by 
launching this Survey.   Ute Quinn 
summarizes what we have found – an ever 
vocal mediator community that demands 
the recognition of their craft as a 
profession; a younger generation, 
especially in developing countries who are 
clamoring for opportunities to break into 
the field; and a continued need to engage 
the user and advisor community to 
determine their future needs. 
 
In 2016, IMI launched the Global Pound 
Conference to engage stakeholders in a 
modern conversation about the future of 


dispute resolution. The first event was held 
in March in Singapore with the last event 
scheduled in London in July 2017. There 
are commitments to hold events in 40 
cities across 31 countries. The events are 
eliciting information about what users 
want, need and expect; whether the 
market is addressing user wants, needs 
and expectations; how can dispute 
resolution be improved; and what needs to 
be done in the future? We have already 
collected a lot of valuable information that 
will be dissected and analyzed. You can 
find the voting results at 
http://www.globalpoundconference.org/g
pc-series-data/local-voting-
results#.V_O9T5MrLUo .   
 
What I believe we will find is that we are 
more similar than we think across the 
globe in our approaches to dispute 
management and resolution.  We also will 
have in one place responses for the same 
questions from practitioners around the 
world. What an opportunity! 
 
The IMI Board will use all this information 
to develop its short and long term 
priorities for engagement to bring ADR and 
mediation to the forefront of dispute 
resolution efforts. IMI will set its course for 
the future. We hope you will be part of it. 
 


Ute A. Joas Quinn 
Chair, IMI Board Resources Committee, Survey Task Force 
Associate General Counsel, Hess Corporation 


It is my great pleasure to introduce the 2016 
International Mediation & ADR Survey 
sponsored by the International Mediation 
Institute.  We are most grateful to the 815 
survey respondents around the world who 
together provide a much needed insight into 
the perceptions of mediation and ADR from 
the perspectives of all stakeholders to this 
growing industry. 
 
From a corporate perspective, businesses 
have long been faced with managing 
conflicts in a seemingly ever growing number 
of stakeholder combinations.  Though 
immersed internally, not many of these 
experiences are vocalized externally, to 
either capitalize on shared know how or to 
advocate a view which furthers interests – a 
missed opportunity for inhouse advisors 
such as myself.  The survey highlights this 
dilemma, from the proportionate pool of 
business (“User”) respondents to the, at 
times, vastly differing views of these 
respondents from all other stakeholders in 
the survey.  If nothing else, the survey 
highlights that User views matter, both as a 
needed contribution to the diversity of the 
discussion as well as a voice which other 
stakeholders need to hear to spark further 
efficiencies and innovations in the industry. 
 
Also strangely silent is the voice of advisors 
and mediation advocates, be they from law 
firms or elsewhere.  The disconcerting 
disconnect shown in the survey between 
advisors and their clients underscores the 
importance of more frequent conversations  
 


about mediation between these groups and 
when it’s use might be appropriate.   
 
Mediators are naturally the most vocal about 
their vocations, but not necessarily on an 
international scale.  The survey  appears to 
highlight that in order for mediators to 
further refine their industry, mediation will 
actually need to become a profession in its 
own right.  Through  uniform, high-quality 
standards (as Users plead), irrespective of 
jurisdiction, levels of remuneration which 
can be expected for a competent mediation 
professional should then be a natural result. 
 
The survey shows that providers, educators 
and governments have their ears to the 
ground, straining to gather information in an 
area  where not all stakeholders have been 
overly vocal.  Lack of data may then, in turn, 
lead to formalized adaptations of a tool not 
yet proven to be fit for purpose in non-
mandated (voluntary) circumstances.   
 
Finally, younger generations, particularly 
from developing countries, show the 
greatest proclivity in the survey towards 
mediation and the use of web-based tools to 
develop their practices.  
 
There is clearly much to talk about.  We hope 
that you will find the survey results of 
interest and at the least serve to foster 
discussions on this much needed conflict 
management tool from both within your 
organizations and outside. 
 


2 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 



http://www.globalpoundconference.org/gpc-series-data/local-voting-results.V_O9T5MrLUo

http://www.globalpoundconference.org/gpc-series-data/local-voting-results.V_O9T5MrLUo

http://www.globalpoundconference.org/gpc-series-data/local-voting-results.V_O9T5MrLUo

http://www.globalpoundconference.org/gpc-series-data/local-voting-results.V_O9T5MrLUo

http://www.globalpoundconference.org/gpc-series-data/local-voting-results.V_O9T5MrLUo

http://www.globalpoundconference.org/gpc-series-data/local-voting-results.V_O9T5MrLUo

http://www.globalpoundconference.org/gpc-series-data/local-voting-results.V_O9T5MrLUo

http://www.globalpoundconference.org/gpc-series-data/local-voting-results.V_O9T5MrLUo

http://www.globalpoundconference.org/gpc-series-data/local-voting-results.V_O9T5MrLUo

http://www.globalpoundconference.org/gpc-series-data/local-voting-results.V_O9T5MrLUo





CO
N


TEN
TS 


Message from the Chair 


Respondent Profile and Methodology 


Managing Work and Conflicts 


Relevant Factors in Mediation Practice 


Growing Mediation 


  


2 


4 


5 


6 


13 


21 


28 


35 


  


Mediator’s Role/Features/Overview 


3 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


Introduction 


Overview and Acknowledgements 


Executive Summary 







O
VERVIEW


 AN
D ACKN


O
W


LEDGEM
EN


TS 
  


The 2016 Census of Conflict Management Stakeholders and Trends  commissioned by the International Mediation Institute  
(“IMI”) collects and presents statistics and insights of stakeholders  regarding Mediation and Appropriate Dispute Resolution 
(“ADR”) Awareness.  The survey is believed to be the first ever international census of the mediation/ADR community to date. 
 
The survey addresses the needs of business & advisors, mediators & providers, educators, government, NGOs and other 
stakeholders in using and/or practicing mediation and ADR.  The survey further encompasses market observations on the 
effectiveness of IMI as an organization overall  and whether there are areas of further development in professionalising 
mediation and also benefitting its supporters. 
 
The survey provides a very useful snapshot of the state of the international market for mediation.  The report thus pays 
focused attention to the respondent profile in the first instance, not only to explain the survey methodology but also to 
highlight market trends.  Although detailed statistics are provided as entered by the respondents in the survey, general 
summary pages are also provided in the front of each section for ease of review as follows: 
 


• Executive Summary (slide 5) 
• Respondent Profile (slide 6) 
• Managing Work and Conflicts (slide 13) 
• Relevant Factors in Mediation Practices (slide 21) 
• Mediator’s Role/Features/Overview (slide 28) 
• Growing Mediation (slide 35) 


 
Deep appreciation and thanks are extended to the following IMI volunteers constituting part of the IMI Survey Task Force:  
Khory McCormick (Australia), M. Salman Ravala (New York), Christiane Rosenbaum (New York), and Emma Ewart (New 
Zealand). 


4 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 







EXECU
TIVE SU


M
M


ARY 
  


The key findings from this census 
survey (including demographics) 
are: 
 
Stakeholders in international 
mediation (Definitions, see slide 10) 


•Respondents are a significant 
sample (813) representing 67 
countries and speaking 49 
different languages (pp. 8-9); 
•73% of respondents are over the 
age of 45 (35% of these are over 
the age of 60) (p. 11); 
•Women are proportionately 
more represented in mediation 
(40%) than arbitration (14% 
according to public surveys)(p. 
12); 
•58% of respondents have legal 
backgrounds, deriving in largest 
part from those stakeholders 
who sit around a mediation 
table – users, advisors, and 
mediators (pp. 10, 15) 
•Regional views differed in 
significant respects throughout 
the survey, with Latin America 
and Africa proportionately more 
optimistic than North America 
and Asia on various fronts 


 
Mediators 
•48% of mediators are self-
employed; 70% of mediators 


engage in some other profession 
in addition to mediation (p. 30) 
•More women mediators solely 
mediate (18% female, 12% 
male) and mediate solely on a 
volunteer basis (17% female, 6% 
male) (pp. 30-31)); 
•55% of mediators earn less than 
$50,000 USD equivalent 
performing mediation services 
only (p. 31); 
•Marked differences exist 
between IMI Mediators and 
mediators overall with respect 
to motivators and financial 
standing (p. 31, 33) 


 
Views on international 
mediation 
•Users are dramatically more 
familiar with mediation (50%) 
than their advisors perceive 
them to be (6%) (p. 17); 
•Advisors are more familiar with 
mediation (40%) than Users 
perceive them to be (30%), and 
recommend mediation more 
often (70%) than Users perceive 
they do (47%) (p.17);  
•“Asking Peers” remains the 
predominant method for 
advisors to choose mediators 
(53%), and objective search 
engines one of the lowest (4%) 


(p. 18); 
•Using a competent professional 
to aid in resolving disputes 
ranked highest for Users in 
business (87%) and individual 
contexts (78%); all other 
stakeholders ranked this option 
generally higher across the 
board in other contexts (i.e., 
communities, government, 
NGOs) as well (p. 19) 


 
Mediation practices 
•The “qualifications and 
experience of a mediator” is the 
most important factor (75%) for 
Users to know concerning their 
work in conflict management; 
“User views” are  the most 
important factor (75%) for all 
other stakeholders (pp. 23-24); 
•Regarding mediation processes, 
the lowest rates of extreme 
importance are the “time 
mediation takes to resolve a 
conflict”(36%)  and success rates 
(41%).  Enforcement of 
mediation settlements was of 
extreme importance for 53% of 
respondents (56% for users 
specifically) (p. 25); 
•The extent of use of mediation 
does not hold extreme 
importance for any stakeholders 


other than government (52%) 
(p. 26) 


Growing mediation 
•83% of respondents stated that  
users would have at least some 
interest in web-based/ 
automated tools for mediation 
over the next 5 years, but 
expressed uniform hesitation at 
the success these tools would 
have to resolve conflicts over 
face-to-face interactions (p. 37); 
•Only 17% of respondents stated 
that legislators had any 
familiarity with mediation; 18% 
stated that the executive branch 
had any familiarity with 
mediation (p. 38); 
•41% of respondents believe that 
the judicial branch recommends 
mediation most or some of the 
time (p. 39); 
•Educators perceive a large 
student interest in mediation 
(53%), though course offerings 
(according to students) appears 
to be rare (54%) (p. 40); 
•63% of providers stated that 
interest in mediation training 
courses will increase over the 
next 5 years (p. 41). 


 


5 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 







C HAP T E R  1  
RESPONDENT PROFILE AND METHODOLOGY 


6 2015 International Mediation & ADR Survey 







R
ESPO


N
DEN


T PRO
FILE AN


D M
ETHO


DO
LO


GY 
Overview  


This survey  was conducted in Q4 2015/Q1 2016, through an online questionnaire.  The response rate was high. 
 
The respondent base of this survey is more representative than other stakeholder surveys conducted to date with respect to conflict management in 
general and mediation in particular .  With 813 total respondents, the respondent profile* includes a good snapshot of market segments, including  a 
significant number of users, advisors, service providers, educators, students and government/non governmental organization (NGO) stakeholders 
represented in addition to the majority demographic of mediators.  These market segments represent 67 countries speaking 49 different languages 
worldwide.   
 
The translation of the survey into Portuguese  produced marked additional responses and gave a strong diversity quality to the survey.  Future surveys 
may well benefit from additional translations to even better improve results. 
 
From a gender perspective, the size of the female respondent pool (40%) suggests a significantly larger involvement in consensual decision making 
activities than the comparative pool involved in arbitrations (see, e.g.,  16% women respondents to 2013 CCA/Straus Institute Survey of US arbitrators; 
14% women respondents to 2015 Chartered Institute of Arbitrators survey).  This may be due to increased educational opportunities or lower barriers to 
entry, though survey results demonstrated that professional barriers – across the board but particularly among women – may still be preventing women 
mediators from earning a sustainable income through solely conducting mediations. 
 
Age demographics also reflect the continued dominance of older men (aged 60 and over) particularly in North America and Australia/New Zealand in the 
mediation sector.   
 
The largest enthusiasm for mediation-related issues come from the younger populations, the largest majorities of which are based in Africa and Latin 
America. 
 
 
 
*For Respondent/Stakeholder Definitions, see page 10 


7 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 







R
ESPO


N
DEN


T PRO
FILE (GEO


GRAPHIC)  
Respondent profile 


Significant sample:  The 
survey sample represents a 
diverse and global cross 
section of respondents 
representing all ADR 
stakeholders. 813 
stakeholders responded to the 
survey from 6 regions, 
representing 67 countries and 
speaking 49* different 
languages.  
 
Although the survey was 
conducted in English, a 
Portuguese translation was 


also circulated, which 
generated 55 additional native 
Portuguese-speaking 
respondents. 
 
This survey was conducted in 
the period from end of 2015 
to the beginning of 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
 


34% 


14% 
5% 5% 


35% 


5% 
2% 


Region 


Europe                          34%
Asia                                14%
Australia/ New Zealand                         5%
Africa                             5%
North America         35%
Latin America             5%
Middle East                 2% 1 


2 
4 


1 
21 


3 
5 


32 
1 


1 
5 


1 
39 


22 
13 


8 
5 


4 
2 


1 
19 


2 
1 
1 
2 


1 
2 
3 


2 
2 


1 
1 
1 


84 
2 


1 
6 


1 
2 


24 
2 


1 
3 


1 
1 
1 
2 


9 


0 100


Afrikaans
Albanian


Arabic
Catalan
Chinese


Croatian
Danish
Dutch


Dzongkha
English


Ewe
Fijian


Filipino
French


German
Greek


Hebrew
Hindi
Igbo


Indonesian
Irish


Italian
Itsekiri


Kannada
Kiswahili


Korean
Macedonian


Malay
Malayalam


Nepali
Norwegian


Ora/Nigerian
Persian


Polish
Portuguese


Romanian
Rundi


Russian
Sinhala


Slovene
Spanish


Tamil
Telugu
Turkish


Ukranian
Ukwani


Urdu
Vietnamese


Yoruba


49 languages


453 


*62% of respondents have English as their 
native language 


8 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 







R
ESPO


N
DEN


T PRO
FILE (GEO


GRAPHIC) 
Large and Diverse Country representation 


Hong Kong 
11% 


Singapore 
59% 


Vietnam  
2% 


India 
12% 


Nepal 
2% 


Indonesia 
4% 


Philippines 
2% 


Asia 
Hong Kong
Singapore
China
Vietnam
India
South Korea
Nepal
Israel*
Indonesia
Philippines
Afghanistan
Myanmar
Malaysia
Australia
Thimphu Bhutan


For regions 
comprising a large 
number of 
countries, no 
cultural  specific 
reflections were 
possible.   
 
For example, 
Europe, which 
comprises  34% of 
the total number 
of respondents, is 
represented by 29 
diverse and 
culturally distinct 
countries.  
Asia, comprising 
14% of total 
respondents, is 


represented by 15 
countries.  
 
Latin America, 
comprising 5% of 
total respondents, 
is represented by 
7 countries.   
 
The Middle East, 
comprising 2% of 
respondents, is  
represented by 6 
countries,  
while Australia/ 
New Zealand (5%) 
is represented by 
4 countries.   
 
In contrast, North 


America, which 
comprises 35% of 
the total number 
of respondents, is 
comprised of 4 
countries.* 


Austria 
3% Belgium 


3% Denmark 
2% 


France 
7% 


Germany 
4% 


Greece 
4% 


Ireland 
6% 


Italy 
5% 


Netherlands 
11% 


Portugal 
11% 


Spain 
3% 


Switzerland 
3% 


UK 
27% 


Europe Albania
Austria
Belgium
Croatia
Cyprus
Denmark
France
Germany
Greece
Hungary
Ireland
Israel*
Italy
Kosovo
Luxembourg
Macedonia
Netherlands
Norway
Poland
Portugal
Romania
Russia
Scotland
Slovenia
Spain
Switzerland
Turkey
UK
Ukraine


Barbados 
6% 


Brazil 
63% 


Chile 
3% 


Colombia 
10% 


Costa Rica 
3% 


Ecuador 
6% 


Mexico 
9% 


Latin America 


Barbados


Brazil


Chile


Colombia


Costa Rica


Ecuador


Mexico


68% 
13% 


16% 3% 


Australia/New Zealand 


Australia


Fiji*


New Zealand


Tahiti*


10% 


89% 


North America 
Canada


USA


Venezuela*


Virgin Islands
(British)*


17% 


8% 


42% 


8% 
8% 


17% 


Middle East Bahrain


Dubai


Israel


Lebanon


Saudi Arabia


UAE


*countries listed as self-reported 


9 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 







R
ESPO


N
DEN


T PRO
FILE 


Diverse Stakeholders Q12 


10 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


*small base 


User 
7% 


Advisor 
10% 


Mediators 
53% 


Educator 
12% 


Student 
4% 


Provider 
5% 


Stakeholder 
2% 


Other 
7% 


Constituency In order to understand 
and differentiate 
between viewpoints, 
respondents were asked 
how they were 
connected to mediation 
(respondents were self 
defined and not 
otherwise verified 
through the survey): 
 
•Users.  Those who may 
potentially use 
mediation (“Users”) 
make up 7% of 
respondents, the 
largest groups of 
which divided between 
10% of North America, 
15% of the Middle 
East*, 7% of 
Australia/NZ, 6% of 
Asia and 5% of both 
Africa and Europe. 
•Advisors.  Those who 
(may) recommend 
using mediation as 
external counsel, 
consultant or User 
representative 
(“Advisors”) make up 
10% of respondents, 
with the largest groups 
divided between Africa 


(13%), Asia (12%), 
Europe (12%) and Latin 
America (8%). 
•Mediators.  Those who 
conduct mediations 
(“Mediators”) make up 
the majority (53%) of 
respondents, with the 
largest groups divided 
between Australia/NZ 
(65%), North America 
(59%), Europe (52%), 
Asia (51%), Latin 
America (46%) and the 
Middle East (30%)*. 
•Educators.  Those who 
teach mediation or 
train mediators and/or 
mediation advocates/ 
advisors (“Educators”) 
had the largest 
distribution of 
Educators come from 
Latin America (14%), 
Africa (13%), Asia 
(13%), and Europe 
(12%).  
•Providers.  Those who 
arrange and 
administer mediation, 
or provide other 
products/ services to 
the ADR industry 
(“Provider”) had the 


largest distribution of 
Providers come from 
the Middle East* 
(15%), Africa (8%), 
Latin America (7%), 
and Asia (6%). 
•Students.  Those who 
study mediation 
(“Students”) had the 
largest distribution of 
students come from 
Africa (8%), Latin 
America (5%), Europe 
(3%), and Asia (3%). 
•Other stakeholders.  
Those who are 
otherwise interested in 
mediation as a conflict 
management 
stakeholder (e.g., 
government, NGOs, 
etc.) (“Stakeholders”) 
were only prevalent in 
Latin America (7%), 
Asia (5%), North 
America (1%) and 
Europe (1%). 


 







R
ESPO


N
DEN


T PRO
FILE (AGE) 


Age Ratios 


Age is a contributing 
factor in the level of 
interest in conflict 
management.  The 
total range of ages  of 
respondents were 25 
or younger (2%), 25-
45 (23%), 45-60 
(38%), and over 60 
years of age (35%).   
North America had 
the oldest category of 
respondents  (56% 
over the age of 60), 
followed by Australia/ 


New Zealand (53% 
over the age of 60) 
and the Middle East 
(50% over the age of 
60).* 
 
The largest 
representation of 
young respondents 
aged 45 and under 
came from Africa 
(40%) and Latin 
America (38%), 
followed by Asia 
(35%).  


Female population 
generally younger.  
71% of women 
respondents are ages 
25-60 as opposed to 
52% of men in the 
same age group.  
Only 27% of women 
are aged over 60 
compared to 45% of 
men in this 
respondent pool. 
 
 


In terms of 
stakeholders, 
students generally 
made up the 
youngest population, 
followed by advisors 


and providers.  Users 
and other 
stakeholders such as 
government/NGOs,  
fell in the mid-range 
while mediators and 


educators made up 
the most senior 
populations.  


11 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


*small base 


0.00 40.00


18-25
25-45
45-60


ove…


Users 
By Age


Linear
(By
Age)


0.00 200.00


18-25


25-45


45-60


over…


Mediators 


By Age


Linear
(By
Age)


0.00 10.0020.00


18-25


25-45


45-60


over 60


Students 


By
Age


Linear
(By
Age)


0.00 40.00


18-25


25-45


45-60


over…


Advisors 


By
Age


Linear
(By
Age)


0.00 20.00 40.00


18-25


25-45


45-60


over 60


Educators 


By
Age


Linear
(By
Age)


0.00 10.00 20.00


18-25


25-45


45-60


over 60


Providers 


By Age


Linear
(By
Age)


Youngest stakeholders 


Most senior stakeholders 


Midrange stakeholders 


0.00 5.00 10.00


18-25


25-45


45-60


over 60


Government/Other 


By Age


Linear
(By
Age)







R
ESPO


N
DEN


T PRO
FILE (GEN


DER) 
Gender Ratios 


12 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


0


20


40


Male Female


Users 


36% 


64% 


0


50


Male Female


Advisors 


42% 
57% 


0


100


200


300


Male Female


Mediators 


35% 


64% 


0


20


40


60


Male Female


Educators 


35% 


64% 


0


5


10


15


20


Male Female


Students 


30% 


69% 


0


5


10


15


Male Female


Government/Other 


44% 
55% 


18.5


19


19.5


20


20.5


Male Female


Providers 


51% 


48% 


Predominantly 
male response.  
The majority of 
all respondents 
were male 
(60%).  
Regionally, 
Australia/New 
Zealand had 
the highest 
proportion of 


women 
respondents 
(56%), followed 
by North 
America (42%) 
and the Middle 
East (50%).* 
 
The largest 
disparity in 
genders exists 


in Latin 
America (71% 
male), Asia 
(68% male), 
and Africa (63% 
male), with 
Europe not far 
behind (62% 
male). 


Stakeholders 
generally lack 
gender 
diversity.  With 
one notable 
exception, the 
majority of all 
stakeholder 
groups were 
male.  Females 
constitute the 
majority of 
Provider 
respondents 


(51%), with the 
next highest 
female 
populations 
coming from 
governments/ 
other (44%), 
and Advisors 
(42%).  Also 
noteworthy is 
that the largest 
disparity 
between 
genders exists 


among student 
respondents 
(69% male), 
with the next 
largest 
disparity (64% 
male) shared 
between users, 
mediators and 
educators. 


*small base 







MANAGING WORK AND CONFLICTS 


13 2015 International Mediation & ADR Survey 







M
AN


AGIN
G W


O
RK AN


D CO
N


FLICTS 
Overview  


Although respondents overall indicate a large array of professional backgrounds, the majority of professionals (58%) come  from a legal 
background, represented most strongly by users and advisors, followed by mediators and providers.  The largest respondent pool amongst 
all stakeholders are self-employed. 
 
In managing work and conflicts, there is a clear perception differential between Users and the advisors who represent them both as 
regards conflict management in general and mediation in particular.  Users in this respondent pool may qualify in the category of 
“sophisticated users”, i.e., being very familiar with the main forms of conflict management and resolution -- including  mediation – 
dramatically more than they were given credit for by their advisors.  Though advisors perceive themselves to know more about consensual 
decision making tools than their clients, and perceive themselves as regularly recommending mediation, clients experience this differently.  
This suggests a significant disconnect in perceived strategy alignment on how to manage conflicts and the role mediation might play 
therein.  
 
Survey results demonstrate the importance of obtaining user views in an area in which their views may differ – at times dramatically – 
from the remainder of the stakeholder populations.  One such area is the marked difference in views  of the potential breadth of use of 
third party facilitators depending on the parties (business, individual, government, NGO) to the conflict.  The narrower use of a competent 
professional for business and individual disputes by users reflects perhaps how mediators transport themselves into market segments, i.e.,  
suggesting that mediation skills may be brought into businesses and governments internally for certain types of disputes, but not the 
mediation itself through use of an independent third party. 


14 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 







R
ESPO


N
DEN


T PRO
FILE (PRO


FESSIO
N


AL BACKGRO
U


N
D) 


28 Professions Represented 


Accounting/Banking 
3% 


Business 
10% 


Education 
3% HR/Labor relations 


6% 


Legal 
58% 


Mediation 
2% 


Political science 
3% 


Psychology 
3% 


Social Work 
3% 


Professional Background Accounting/Banking
Anthropology
Arts
Biology
Business
Conflict management
Construction
CSR
Education
Engineering
Environmental sciences
Geography
Government
Hospitality
HR/Labor relations
Humanities
Legal
Media/Communications
Mediation
Medicine
Other sciences
Political science
Psychology
Real estate
Religion
Social Work


Large diversity in 
professions.    Of 815 
overall respondents, 
944 responses were 
received 
representing 28 
different professions 
(suggesting multiple 
educational 
qualifications per  
individual).   
By far the largest 
representation (58%) 
is among the legal 
profession (543 
individuals).  93 
individuals (10%) 
responded that they 
have a business 
background, followed 
by 60 individuals (6%) 


with a human 
resources/labor 
background.  3% 
(each) of 
respondents 
represent social work 
(33), psychology (30), 
education (27), 
political science (27), 
and accounting/ 
banking (24).  The 
remaining 10% of 
responses are split as 
shown in the 
adjoining Chart, with 
2% of respondents 
describing their 
professional 
background as 
“mediation”. 


15 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


More homogenous negotiating tables.   Despite a 
wide array of professional backgrounds,  the least 
diverse of the stakeholders were those who 
typically sit at the negotiating table.   Users and 
advisors  had the largest representation of legal 
backgrounds (76% and 80% respectively), followed 
by mediators and providers (69% each).  Although 
the largest proportion for  (government) 
stakeholders was also legal (33%),  strong 


showings existed also for human resources (22%), 
political science (11%), and “other” professions 
(22%).  Students were perhaps the most diverse in 
backgrounds (61% legal, 30% “other”), followed by 
educators (63% legal, 24% “other”). 
 
There were no appreciable differences amongst 
genders or regions in this category. 







R
ESPO


N
DEN


T PRO
FILE (PRO


FESSIO
N


AL BACKGRO
U


N
D) 


Employment status Q6 


16 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


10% 


26% 


8% 
6% 5% 


35% 


10% 


Employment Status Business


Law firm/
consultancy
Government
employee
Academic
institution
Non-profit
organization
Self-employed


Other


In order to understand the support 
network of the respondents they 
were asked about  how and where 
they were employed: 
• There was a clear trend from a 


majority of respondents who 
were either self-employed (35%) 
or working for a law firm or 
other consultancy (26% of 
respondents).  


• Almost half of self-employed 
respondents were mediators 
(48%), followed by educators 
(24%) and students (20%). 


• The largest proportion of 
providers were employed by 
government (27%), followed by 
consulting firms (20%), and non-
profit organizations (17%). 


• The largest proportion of 
“other” stakeholders are 
employed by government (27%), 
followed by nonprofit 


organizations (22%).   


0%


10%


20%


30%


40%


50%


60%


Stakeholder Employment Status 


Business Law firm/ consulting Government


Academia Non- profit Self- employed


Other







M
AN


AGIN
G W


O
RK AN


D C
O


N
FLICTS 


What is the level of familiarity with mediation (real and perceived)? Q13, Q15, Q19, Q20, Q23 


Perceptions between advisors and 
their clients varied (at times 
dramatically) with respect to the 
level of knowledge possessed 
about ADR and mediation:  
•Advisors perceive their clients to 


be markedly less familiar with 
mediation  (6%) and conflict 
management (7%) than users 
themselves feel about mediation 
(50%) and conflict management 
(47%). 
•Advisors also had much higher 


perceptions of their own 
familiarity both with conflict 
management in general (49%) 
and mediation (40%) than client 
users had about their advisors –  
perceiving  that 46% of advisors 
were exceedingly familiar with 
conflict management while 
perceiving that only 30% of 
advisors were exceedingly 


familiar with mediation.  
•User respondents who stated 


they are “exceedingly familiar” 
with mediation (50%) 
outnumber their advisors (40%). 
•Advisors overwhelmingly felt 


that knowing how best to use 
mediation as part of their work 
was very valuable (78%). 
•However, in terms of 


recommending mediation, Users 
responded that their advisors 
recommend mediation less than 
half of the time (47%), while 
advisors responded that they 
recommend mediation  the 
predominant majority of the 
time (70%).  The results suggest 
a significant disconnect in 
perceived strategy alignment on 
how to manage conflicts and the 
role mediation might play 
therein. 


Perceptions regarding Users 


0%


10%


20%


30%


40%


50%


60%


Users Advisors


Users
"Exceedingly
Familiar" with
Mediation


Users
"Exceedingly
Familiar" with
Conflict
Management


Perceptions regarding Advisors 


0%


10%


20%


30%


40%


50%


60%


Users Advisors


ADVISORS
"Exceedingly
Familiar" with
Mediation


Advisors
"Exceedingly
Familiar" with
Conflict
Management


0.00%
10.00%
20.00%
30.00%
40.00%
50.00%
60.00%
70.00%
80.00%


Users Advisors


Advisors who
regularly recommend
mediation


Perceptions regarding  suggesting mediation 


17 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 







M
AN


AGIN
G W


O
RK AN


D CO
N


FLICTS 
How are mediators chosen (real and perceived) Q22, Q39 


 
 
 
 
 
 


How Advisors choose mediators 


53% 
4% 


23% 


1% 
17% 


55% 
4% 


23% 


4% 
11% Ask Peers


Consult IMI Search
Engine


Ask local ADR
institutions for advice


Leave it to the client
to suggest


Other


Learning about mediation very valuable 


“The major problem is to convince my 
clients, etc., to rely on ADR (except 


possibly, commercial arbitration 
instead of courts of crown)” 


 


• The advisor’s method of choosing mediators (inner circle below) coincides 
almost exactly with the perceptions of other stakeholders’ (outer circle 
below) on how parties and their advisors choose mediation, i.e., by asking 
peers and relying on one’s own network (53%).   


• Those who do go beyond their network ask local ADR institutions for advice 
(23%).   


• Almost no one (1%) would leave such a task solely to the client to suggest, 
which infers a strong disconnect between the high level of knowledge users 
claim to have concerning mediation and the practical use of that knowledge 
when it comes to choosing a mediator.   


• Search engines with objective third party feedback on mediator performance 
is also rarely used (4%). 


 
 


18 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


“A happy client reinforces the 
relationship he has with his counsel.  


The client has a win, so [does] his 
initial opponent but also ultimately 


the counsel.  Everyone wins.” 







M
AN


AGIN
G W


O
RK AN


D CO
N


FLICTS 
Potential uses of a competent professional/mediation Q17, Q38 


0%


10%


20%


30%


40%


50%


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


Users Stakeholders


19 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


In order to assess the 
potential breadth of use of 
mediation, respondents 
were asked in which areas 
conflicts could be facilitated 
by a competent 
professional: 
 
•Users.  Generally Users 


were the most optimistic 
about using such 
professionals in the 
business to business 
context (87%), business to 
employee context (74%), 
and  individual to 
individual context (78%).  
Individual  to business 
disputes also scored 
relatively high  as a 
possibility (67%). 


 
•Other Stakeholders.  In all 


other areas, however, 
other stakeholders were 
more optimistic than users 
about the potential for 
using a competent 


professional, including 
disputes between 
businesses and 
communities (65%), 
between business and 
government (61%), 
between business and 
NGOs (59%), between 
individuals and business 
(69%), individuals to 
government (63%), as well 
as between governments 
(62%). 


 







M
AN


AGIN
G W


O
RK AN


D CO
N


FLICTS 
Exposure to conflicts and levels of discourse Q7, Q9, Q10 


In describing  practice experiences, 83% of respondents said their 
work involves some form of conflict management or dispute 
resolution either frequently or “all the time” . 
 
Consequently, not surprisingly  70% of respondents said  that  they 
are “exceedingly familiar and use” the mainstream forms of 
conflict management and resolution.   
• The highest levels of familiarity and use exists in North America 


(83%), Australia/New Zealand (79%), and Europe (68%).   
• The “lowest” levels of  “exceeding familiarity and use” arose in 


Asia (52%), the Middle East (61%), Latin America (56%) and 
Africa (62%), but these were still majorities. 


• Only Africa (2%) and Asia (2%) had any respondents who were 
not at all familiar with the mainstream forms of conflict 
management and resolution. 
 


The majority of respondents (76%) speak with either peers and/or  
industry about conflict management and resolution either “often” 
or “all the time”, with only (17%) finding such engagement to be 
nonessential. 


20 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 







RELEVANT FACTORS IN MEDIATION PRACTICE 


21 2015 International Mediation & ADR Survey 







M
EDIATIO


N PRACTICES 
Overview  


22 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


The  worldwide audience is interested in advocacy of mediation – of educating the Users on mediation and on  developing uniform international standards.  They are 
aware that education and qualifications for mediators are very important but found a gap in uniformity overall: 


 
• Over 75% of stakeholders responded that User views on mediation are the most important factor as concerns their work in conflict management.   
 
• Only 36% considered the time mediation takes to resolve a conflict as being extremely important (noteworthy against the importance placed on User 


views).  
  
• Similarly, only 41% found the success rate of mediation as extremely important or the types of conflict mediation could be used for (39%). 
 
• The importance of User views is only overshadowed slightly in certain regions by the importance of mediator qualifications and experience.  


Approximately 50% of respondents think it is extremely important to know what mediators think of the practice of mediation.  Given that mediators are 
often unregulated and there is no current structured licensing or other regulatory requirement globally, and those that have become mediators have 
chosen to do so voluntarily to advance their careers or grow their business, this response makes sense.  As compared to User views, this showcases 
perhaps the focus of the user-friendly and flexible process of mediation for the benefit of users. 
 


Contrasted to the above set of questions, regions varied in their responses as to which areas were most beneficial for an organization to be shepherding at this time: 
 


• Africa and Latin America represent two of the youngest pools aged 45 and under (40% and 38%, respectively).  “Providing tools for Users” was the most 
important area  IMI could provide a benefit according to both Africa (58%) and Latin America (64%). 
 


• Europe comprises a slightly older population (32% aged 45 and under).  “Setting high mediation standards that assure quality for users worldwide” was 
the most important area IMI could provide a benefit according to this region (49%). 
 


• Australia/New Zealand has the most senior populations (7% aged 45 and under).   “Influencing policy makers about promoting and using mediation and 
other forms of conflict management” was the most important area IMI could provide a benefit according to this region (52%). 
 


• North America comprises the largest (35%) and also more senior (11% aged 45 and under) respondent pool.  “Fostering measures that increase a 
common understanding of consensual dispute resolution processes in order to reduce the potential escalation of conflicts” was the most important area 
IMI could provide a benefit according to this region (30%). 
 


• Asia comprises the third youngest population (35% aged 45 and under). “Setting high mediation standards that assure quality for users worldwide” was 
also the most important area IMI could provide a benefit according to this region (49%). 
 


• Respondents from the Middle East represented too small of a base  (13 respondents) to identify reliable trends.  Its population was also quite senior 
(30% aged 45 and under).  “Establishing a comprehensive code of professional conduct for certified mediators backed by a disciplinary process” was the 
most important area IMI could provide a benefit according to these respondents (50%). 
 







M
EDIATIO


N PRACTICE 
How important are User views on conflict management to Stakeholders? Q11 


25%


50%


100%
What Users think about


mediation
How often Users use


mediation
How often Users use


other conflict
resolution tools


“Extremely Important” 


Users Advisors Mediators


Educators Providers Stakeholders


23 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


•Regionally, user 
views are the 
single most 
important factor 
in Africa (77%), 
Europe (69%), 
Australia/NZ 
(68%) and North 
America (67%).   


•Though also 
extremely 
important in Latin 
America (73%), 
the Middle East 
(69%), and Asia 
(57%), user views 
are not as 
important as 


mediator 
qualifications and 
experience in 
these 
jurisdictions.  


 


User views are 
extremely 
important.   
•The majority of all 
stakeholders (with 
the exception of 
Users themselves), 
find user views on 
conflict 
management to be 
extremely 
important – even 
more so than 
mediator views, 
mediation 
processes and 
statistical data on 
mediation.   


 
•With slightly less 
intensity, 72% of 


all stakeholders 
find knowing how 
often users 
actually use 
mediation to be 
“important” (with 
only a majority 
(53%) of providers 
finding this 
information to be 
“extremely 
important”).   


 
•A similar 
percentage of 
stakeholders (71%) 
find it “important” 
to know how often 
Users use other 
conflict resolution 
tools (though no 


majority of 
stakeholders 
found this data to 
be “extremely 
important”).  


 
•As representatives 
of users, advisors 
found it the least 
important to know 
how often users 
use mediation 
(28%) and only 
slightly more 
important than 
users as to how 
often users use 
other conflict 
resolution tools 
(30%).  


 







M
EDIATIO


N PRACTICE 
How important are Mediator views to Stakeholders? Q11 


25%


50%


100%
What Mediators think
about the practice of


Mediation


What qualifications and
experience a Mediator


has


What disciplinary
proceedings a Mediator


may be subject to


“Extremely Important” 


Users Advisors Mediators


Educators Providers Stakeholders


24 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


Mediator 
qualifications and 
experience  most 
important to Users.   
•The single most 
important factor 
(75%) for Users  to 
know concerning 
their work in 
conflict 
management is 
what qualifications 
and experience a 
mediator has 
(compare to 63% of 
advisors, 68% of 
providers, 66% of 
mediators and 38% 


of other 
stakeholders such 
as government/ 
NGOs who feel the 
same level of 
importance).    
•Knowing what 
disciplinary 
proceedings a 
mediator may be 
subject to is also of 
the highest 
importance to the  
user stakeholder 
group (44%), but it 
does not hold the 
majority level of 
importance for any 


stakeholder. 
•Knowing what 
mediators think 
about their 
profession is of 
highest importance 
to providers (60%), 
educators (59%) 
and other 
stakeholders such 
as government/ 
NGOs (55%). 


•Regionally, Latin 
America (79%), the 
Middle East (76%), 
and Asia (58%) find 
mediator 
qualifications and 
experience to be the 
most important 
consideration in 
conflict management.  
A majority of other 
jurisdictions also find 
mediator 
qualifications to be 
extremely important 
(North America 65%, 


Europe 63%, Africa 
61%, Australia/NZ 
60%), but not as 
important as user 
views. 
•Mediator views are 
extremely important 
in Latin America 
(73%), Africa (63%), 
Australia/NZ (55%), 
the Middle East 
(53%) and Asia (53%), 
but do not hold a 
majority level of 
importance in Europe 
(48%) or North 


America (43%). 
•Disciplinary 
proceedings for 
mediators is starkly 
more important in 
Latin America (64%), 
Africa (63%), and the 
Middle East (53%), 
than it is in North 
America (38%), 
Europe (37%), 
Australia/NZ (36%) or 
Asia (31%). 







M
EDIATIO


N PRACTICE 
How important are mediation processes to Stakeholders? 


25%


50%


100%
When


mediation is
mandatory as


opposed to
voluntary


What the
outcomes of


mediation are


How long it
takes to
resolve a
conflict
through


mediation


The types of
conflicts


mediation is
used for


How
mediation can


be enforced


“Extremely important” 


Users Advisors Mediators


Educators Providers Stakeholders


25 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


Mediation process 
itself less important 
than User views.  
•A majority of all 
stakeholders except 
mediators (45%) 
and educators 
(45%) stated that 
the enforcement of 
mediation 
outcomes was 
extremely 
important. 
•Mediation 
outcomes held the 
largest extreme 
importance for 
users (52%), 
providers (50%) and 
students(50%). 
•Users also placed 
the largest 
importance (50%) 
of all stakeholders 


on when mediations 
are mandatory as 
opposed to 
voluntary.  
•There otherwise 
appears to be a 
disconnect between 
the relatively low 
level of  importance 
of knowing certain 
process aspects of 
mediation as 
opposed to the high 
level of importance 
in knowing user 
views about 
mediation overall. 
•Advisors and 
mediators in 
particular placed 
relatively less 
importance on what 
the outcomes of 
mediation are 


(advisors 43%; 
mediators 37%); 
how long it takes to 
resolve a conflict 
through mediation 
(advisors 38%, 
mediators 31%), or 
the types of 
conflicts mediation 
can be used for 
(advisors 41%, 
mediators 34%)) 
than other 
stakeholders.  


•Regionally, 
enforcement of  
mediations holds 
the least level of 
extreme 
importance in North 
America (36%) and 
Australia/NZ (26%), 
compared to 
majority views in 


other regions.    
•Mediation 
outcomes were also 
less important in 
Australia/NZ (21%), 
Asia (28%), North 
America (40%) and 
Europe (40%), than 
in the other regions. 


 


•Though slightly 
more important 
overall, a similar 
trend existed 
amongst the 
regions with respect 
to how long it takes 
to resolve a conflict 
through mediation. 







M
EDIATIO


N PRACTICE 
How important is statistical data on mediation to Stakeholders? 


13%


25%


50%


100%
The number of


mediations performed
in your


profession/industry


The number of
mediations performed


in your
jurisdiction/region


The number of
mediations performed


around the world


“Extremely Important” 


Users Advisors Mediators


Educators Providers Stakeholders


26 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


Mediation statistics 
are most important 
to governments/ 
NGOs.  
•Perhaps 
unsurprisingly, the 
greatest interest in 
knowing the 
number of 
mediations 
conducted in one’s 
jurisdiction /region 
are government 
stakeholders (52%), 
with the largest 
regional interests in 
the Middle East* 
(53%), Latin 
America (46%), 
Africa (37%), and 
Europe (33%).  


  
•Amongst the 
stakeholders, 
advisors attribute 
the least level of 
importance 


amongst the 
stakeholders to 
regional mediation 
data (26%). 


 
•Providers (39%) 
and users (37%) 
demonstrate the 
largest interest in 
knowing the 
number of 
mediations 
performed in their 
profession/ 
industry, but no 
stakeholder 
exhibited a 
majority interest in 
this type of 
information. 


  
•Regionally, the 
Middle East* (61%), 
Latin America 
(48%), Africa (36%) 
and Europe (33%) 
also exhibited the 


greatest interest in 
this category.  
 
•Global mediation 
data has the 
greatest interest 
amongst 
government/NGO 
stakeholders (35%), 
students (24%), 
users (31%) and 
educators (31%), 
but has the least 
level of interest to 
advisors (20%). 


 
•Regionally, the 
Middle East* (46%), 
Latin America 
(39%), and Europe 
(30%) exhibited the 
largest interest in 
this category. 


*small base 







IM
I FAM


ILIARITY 
Areas of Importance in which IMI can provide a benefit Q44 


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%


25%


30%


35%


40%


45%


Pr
ov


id
in


g 
to


ol
s f


or
 U


se
rs


Pr
ov


id
in


g 
ob


je
ct


iv
e 


in
fo


 to
 h


el
p 


ch
oo


se
m


ed
ia


to
rs


Pr
ov


id
in


g 
ob


je
ct


iv
e 


in
fo


 to
 h


el
p 


ch
oo


se
ad


vi
so


rs


se
tt


in
g 


hi
gh


 m
ed


ia
tio


n 
st


an
da


rd
s


pr
ov


id
in


g 
ne


tw
or


ki
ng


en
ab


lin
g 


yo
u 


to
 h


el
p 


IM
I a


cc
om


pl
ish


 V
&


M


in
flu


en
ci


ng
 p


ol
ic


y 
m


ak
er


s


le
ve


lin
g 


pl
ay


in
g 


fie
ld


 b
y 


br
in


gi
ng


aw
ar


en
es


s a
nd


 h
ig


h 
qu


al
ity


 e
du


ca
tio


n


su
pp


or
tin


g 
re


se
ar


ch
 th


ro
ug


h 
ge


ne
ra


tin
g


da
ta


in
cr


ea
sin


g 
ac


ce
ss


 to
 ju


st
ic


e 
th


ro
ug


h
pr


om
ot


in
g 


ap
pr


op
ria


te
 A


DR
 c


ho
ic


es


fo
st


er
in


g 
m


ea
su


re
s t


ha
t i


nc
re


as
e 


co
m


m
on


un
de


rs
ta


nd
in


g 
of


 c
on


se
ns


ua
l d


isp
ut


e 
re


s…


es
ta


bl
ish


 C
od


e 
of


 C
on


du
ct


/ d
isc


ip
lin


ar
y


pr
oc


es
s


“Extreme importance” 


Extremely important Not important


27 2015 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


“In order to assess 
areas of importance in 
mediation, respondents 
were asked which areas 
they deemed most 
beneficial for IMI to be 
shepherding”: 
•Overall, respondents 


found all mentioned 
categories to be 
important to a certain 
extent. 
•Areas which 


respondents found to 
be of the highest 
importance for IMI 
were: setting high 
mediation standards 
that assure quality for 
users worldwide 
(42%), influencing 
policy makers about 
promoting and using 
mediation and other 
forms of conflict 
management and 
resolution (41%), 
increasing access to 
justice through 
promoting dispute 
resolution choices that 
are appropriate for 
the circumstance 
(40%), fostering 
measures that 
increase a common 
understanding of 
consensual dispute 


resolution processes 
in order to reduce 
potential escalation of 
conflicts (38%), 
providing networking 
opportunities (37%), 
and establishing a 
comprehensive code 
of professional 
conduct for certified 
mediators backed by a 
disciplinary process 
(35%). 
•Areas scoring the 


lowest in importance 
(i.e., “not important at 
all”) where enabling 
IMI to accomplish its 
Mission & Vision 
(19%), providing 
objective information 
to help choose 
advisors (19%), and 
establishing a code of 
conduct (14%). 
•Regionally, the most 


important area for 
Africa (58%) and Latin 
America (64%) was 
providing tools for 
Users. 
• The most important 


area for Asia (49%) 
and Europe (49%) was 
setting high mediation 
standards that assure 
quality for users 
worldwide. 


• The most important 
area for Australia/ NZ 
(52%) was influencing 
policy makers 
• The most important 


area for North 
America (30%) and 
the Middle East (50%) 
was fostering 
measures that 
increase a common 
understanding of 
consensual dispute 
resolution processes 
in order to reduce the 
potential escalation of 
conflicts. 
• In addition to the 


above, the  other most 
important area for the 
Middle East  (50%)* 
was establishing a 
comprehensive code 
of professional 
conduct for certified 
mediators backed by a 
disciplinary process. 
 


*small base 







C HAP T E R  4  
MEDIATOR’S ROLE/FEATURES/OVERVIEW 


28 2015 International Mediation & ADR Survey 







M
EDIATO


R’S RO
LE/FEATU


RES/O
VERVIEW


 
Overview  


The study results reflect the dependence on mediators for process decisions and the integrity of the sessions.  Given that mediation is 
mostly unstructured and tailored to the individual needs of the mediating parties, the mediator is often instrumental in shaping the 
process, and potentially the outcome, of the mediation.  For this reason, the survey endeavored to gain more insight into the professional 
backgrounds of mediators. 
 
Overall, it appears that those involved in mediation do so alongside another profession, predominantly a legal one.  The responses to Q25 
might suggest that a reason for this is the typically low remuneration for mediation work.  In relation to IMI, respondents suggested that 
they would like it to take a more active role in the promotion and support of mediation.  Remuneration levels juxtaposed against interest in 
mediation suggest that engagement may in many cases be  altruistic.   
 


29 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 







M
EDIATO


R’S RO
LE/FEATU


RES/O
VERVIEW


 
What proportion does mediation play as part of a mediator’s overall practice? (Q24) 


30 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


“Respondents were 
asked whether  
mediation was their 
primary profession or 
whether they also 
performed other 
services”.   
 
• Approximately 


70% of the total 
respondents 
engaged in some 
other profession 
as well as 
mediation, with 
almost 50% of 
those respondents 
engaging in some 
other form of 


ADR. 
• This trend was 


more pronounced 
for males, with 
females more 
likely to pursue 
careers outside of 
the ADR field. 


• It is interesting to 
note that of those 
respondents who 
specified the 
“other service” 
they performed in 
addition to 
mediation, 35% 
said they 
practiced law; 
which was the 


most prevalent 
“other” service. 


• This would 
suggest that it is 
not uncommon 
practice for 
mediators to use 
their mediation 
skills within the 
scope of their 
legal practice. 


• Moreover, IMI 
certified 
mediators were 
much more likely 
to remain within 
the ADR field than 
any other 
demographic. 


14% 


33% 
39% 


4% 
10% 


Mediation only


Mediation and other
ADR


Mediation and other


Don't mediate presently


Other


Women more likely to seek work outside of ADR field IMI Certified Mediators more likely to remain within ADR field 







M
EDIATO


R’S RO
LE/FEATU


RES/O
VERVIEW


 
How much income is generated based solely on performing mediator services? Q25 


31 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


25% 


30% 15% 


7% 


6% 
4% 


10% 3% 


USD equivalent $0 - 10,000


$10,001 - $50,000


$50,001 - 100,000


$100,001 -
200,000


$200,001 -
500,000


$500,000+


Mediate on
volunteer basis
only


The responses to this 
question help to shed 
light on the trend 
noticed in the 
previous question.   
 
When asked about 
how much income 
was earned solely 
from mediation…” 
• More than half 


the respondents 
answered that 
they earned less 
than $50,000 USD 
equivalent a year, 
and of those half 
earned less than 
$10,000 USD 
equivalent a year 
for their 
mediation 


services. 
• By way of 


comparison, in 
2014 the 
Organisation for 
Economic 
Cooperation and 
Development 
(OECD) found that 
the average yearly 
wage of member 
countries was 
$44,982 USD. 


• This may explain 
why 
approximately 
70% of the total 
respondents to 
the previous 
question stated 
that they engaged 
in some other 


profession, as it 
appears from the 
data that most 
mediators do not 
earn a sufficient 
income from their 
mediation work 
alone. 


• It is worth 
highlighting also 
that 
approximately 
10% of 
respondents 
undertook 
mediation on a 
purely voluntary 
basis. 


 


Women more likely to seek work on volunteer basis 


IMI Certified Mediators generally earn more than non-certified mediators 


0%
5%


10%
15%
20%
25%
30%
35%


IMI Certified
Mediator


Mediator







M
EDIATO


R’S RO
LE/FEATU


RES/O
VERVIEW


 
What form of professional license/certification does the mediator hold? Q26 


32 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


Psychology 
1% 


Law 
42% 


Accounting 
2% 


Other 
10% 


No license 
1% 


Mediation 
44% Medicine


Psychology


Law


Accounting


Other


No license


Mediation


73% 
70% 


14% 


70% 


20% 


34% 


7% 


0


50


100


150


200


250


300


Annual
continuing


professional
education


training


Payment of
annual


dues/fees


Periodic
performance


based
assessments


Adherence to
Professional


Code of
Conduct


Providing
feedback


from clients


Proof of prof
development


activities


Other


Conditions for maintaining license/certification Q27 


“In order to 
understand the 
qualifications of 
the respondents 
they were asked 
about their 
professional 
certification and 
licensing.”    
There was a clear 
trend between 
certification in 


law and 
mediation 
(almost 86% of 
respondents 
answered that 
they were 
certified in both 
law and/or 
mediation), and 
this would seem 
to corroborate 
the previous data 


from Q24, with 
approximately 
two thirds of 
respondents 
have some form 
of professional 
license or 
certification in 
these fields. 


Of those 
respondents 
who had some 
form of 
professional 
licensing or 
certification, the 
most prevalent 
were: 
•Annual 
continuing 
professional 
education 
training (73%) 
•Payment of 


annual 
dues/fees 
(70%) 
•Adherence to a 
professional 
Code of 
Conduct (70%) 


 
It is noteworthy 
that the next 
most prevalent 
response, proof 
of professional 
development 
activities, was a 


big decrease 
from these 
responses, being 
34% of 
respondents.  







M
EDIATO


R’S RO
LE/FEATU


RES/O
VERVIEW


 
Reasons for seeking license/certification Q28 


33 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


13% 
18% 


37% 
42% 


57% 


5% 


39% 


21% 


14% 


38% 


5% 


34% 


28% 


7% 


0%


10%


20%


30%


40%


50%


60%When responding 
to ‘why’ the 
respondents chose 
to acquire such 
professional 
license/ 
certification: 
•The most 
common 
response, of 
which 57% of 
respondents 
selected, was to 
demonstrate 
professionalism 
•The next most 
prevalent 


responses were 
to signify 
personal 
credibility (42%), 
and also 
credibility for 
mediation itself 
(39%). 


 
These responses 
suggest that the 
primary concern 
of respondents 
who acquire 
professional 
licensing or 
certification is to 


establish a sense 
of confidence in 
both themselves, 
and mediation, 
amongst 
stakeholders. 


For those who 
seek IMI 
certification in 
particular, even 
more emphasis 
is placed on 
demonstrating 
professionalism 
(96%) , business 
development 
(72%), and to 
signify personal 
credibility 


(75%), with an 
additional 
emphasis on 
enhancing the 
reputation of 
mediation 
(63%)  and 
supporting the 
IMI mission 
generally (72%).  
For this 
demographic, 
obtaining an 


international 
stature (48%) 
was also 
significantly 
more relevant 
than other 
demographics.  







M
EDIATO


R’S RO
LE/FEATU


RES/O
VERVIEW


 
What areas are favored to assist with business development? Q29 


34 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%


marketing support


adminstrative support for referrals


tangible diploma/certificate


provide influence/collaborate with
3rd parties for IMI to become initial…


professional support network and
community of practice


provide information on existing/new
markets


adherence to Code of Professional
Conduct


access to indemnity insurance


interaction with different stakeholder
groups


coordinate mediation promotion
activities worldwide


other


Questions were 
asked of mediators 
about the type of 
support they 
valued in their 
profession.  
Though asked in 
the context of IMI, 
the responses 
appear to reflect 
general areas of 
attention which 
mediators would 
value in promoting 
the continued 
growth of the 
profession overall: 
 
•On the basis  of 
the responses to 
this question it is 
apparent that a 
commonly held 
desire is to 
provide support 
to the mediation 
community, with 
over 50% of 
respondents 
calling for some 


sort of support 
service.  
•Specifically, 
respondents 
thought this 
support could 
take the form of 
providing a 
professional 
support network 
and community of 
practice 
(approximately 
25% of 
respondents), 
marketing 
support (approx. 
18% of 
respondents), and 
the coordination 
of worldwide 
promotional 
activities (approx. 
17% of 
respondents) 
•Some less 
commonly 
provided 
responses 
included 


providing 
administrative 
support for 
referrals (10%), 
providing some 
form of tangible 
diploma or 
certification (8%) 
and becoming the 
initial mediation 
contact amongst 
stakeholders (8%). 
 


On the basis of the 
responses it is 
clear that 
respondents would 
like an organization 
to adopt the role 
of an “umbrella 
organization” in 
coordinating 
international 
awareness for 
mediation, and 
also facilitating a 
network of 
mediation 
providers. 







C HAP T E R  5  
GROWING MEDIATION 


35 2015 International Mediation & ADR Survey 







G
RO


W
IN


G M
EDIATIO


N 
Overview  


Analysis of survey results in this Chapter related to those in the Education, Government, and ADR Training Provider sectors.  Those 
surveyed in the Education sector have a strong demand for more coursework relating to mediation.  Conversely, those in the Government 
sector, especially those in the legislative and executive branches of government, while being vaguely familiar with mediation, don’t seem 
to put the same weight to the importance of mediation.  Even the judicial branch is seen by the respondents to recommend mediation as a 
time and resource management tool.  Are Judges themselves of the opinion that mediation should only be used to clear their docket?  Or 
do they firmly and genuinely believe that mediation can help parties in a dispute save time, money and also obtain judicial economy for the 
court system? 
 
Despite the strong predictable increase in mediation training in the next five years, respondents desire mediation training criteria and 
qualifications to become more standardized. 
 
With respect to web-based tools, despite favorable responses to the idea of having such automated tools for mediation, respondents 
conveyed a sense of reluctance.  Many commented on the importance of face-to-face and in-person communication, overcoming language 
and interpersonal communication barriers, and other characteristics so essential to mediation such as hand and facial gestures, 
communication tone, and body language. 


36 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 







G
RO


W
IN


G M
EDIATIO


N (SERVICE PRO
VIDERS) 


What is the prognosis on the level of web-based/automated tools that mediation users may be interested in over the next 5 years? Q37 


37 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


Hesitation about 
automating 
mediation. 
•83% of respondents 
indicated that there 
would be at least 
some interest in 
web based/ 
automated tools in 
the next five years.  
The greatest 
interest came from 
Asia (80%), Africa 
(62%), Europe 
(49%), Latin 
America (46%), and 
North America 
(36%).  Yet 
comments were 
hesitant:  
•  Asia:  “In India, in 
general, face to 
face interactions 
are always much 
more preferred over 
online ones, hence, 
web-based 
mediation, at the 
moment, does not 
seem to have much 
significance.” 
•Africa: “Not yet 
popularised.” 
•Europe: “I’m not 
sure about 


automated tools 
even if some 
encouraging 
experience exists in 
Canada, but I’m 
convinced that we 
will see soon 
mediations through 
secured Conference 
calls.” “Web based 
mediation will 
become an 
important platform 
for consumer 
mediation.” 
•Latin America:  
“The problem is 
that they don’t 
speak other 
languages and that 
makes their spectre 
so short.”  
•North America: 
“Unfortunately, it 
appears this will be 
driven from the 
parties instead of 
the mediators 
themselves.  But it 
will happen and 
‘real soon now’”. 
“Power imbalance 
issues won’t be 
adequately 
addressed with 


automated tools.  
Their interest will 
be high, but it will 
only serve to allow 
them another 
opportunity to hide 
and avoid the issues 
of interpersonal 
communication and 
resolution.” 
“Interested… but 
feel an automated 
tool will not ever 
pick up on the 
nuances of tone of 
voice, and body 
language that assist 
a good mediator in 
being present with 
the parties in the 
dispute.” 
•Australia/NZ: 
“Blatantly 
discourage and 
reject…  These 
seductive tools and 
emissions distort 
and disguise the 
authentic face to 
face, hand in hand 
social interactions 
that share a 
common time and 
place together…” 







G
RO


W
IN


G M
EDIATIO


N (G
O


VERN
M


EN
T) 


How familiar are legislators generally about mediation? Q31                How familiar is the executive branch generally about mediation? Q34 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


38 2015 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


The Government 
Sector were asked 
about their views as 
between various 
branches of 
government:  
•Legislators.  Overall, 
only 17% of 
respondents stated 
that legislators had 
any familiarity at all 
with mediation, with 
the greatest level of 
familiarity appearing 
to come from Asia 
(40%), Australia/NZ 
(20%), Africa (27%), 
Latin America (15%), 
North America (13%) 


and Europe (11%).  
•Australia/NZ: 
“Through the last 
decade in 
particular…legislators 
are muting mediation 
being discouraged as 
less lucrative or more 
profitable with civil 
litigation and 
established 
arbitration.” 
•Europe: “Legislators 
are not paying any 
special attention to 
mediation from the 
fear that mediation 
cannot create 
sustainable income.” 


•Africa: “Our legislators 
are completely 
ignorant of 
mediation.” “The 
Labour Relations Act is 
creating awareness” 
•Latin America:  
“Congressmen are not 
really interested at 
all.” 
•North America: “They 
have heard of it” 
 


•Executive branch.  
Overall, only 18% of 
respondents stated 
that the Executive 
Branch has any 
familiarity at all with 
mediation.  
Australia/NZ (40%), 
Africa (36%), Asia 
(35%), North America 
(17%) and Latin 
America (15%) had 
the highest level of 
familiarity. 
•Latin America: 
“Executive branch is 
interested but the 


problem is the bord 
try to copy other 
countries without 
taking their own 
culture.” 
•Africa:  “They don’t 
care, they need 
education.” 
•Australia/NZ: 
“Executive 
department is largely 
composed of lawyers 
and communications 
backgrounds thus the 
term is familiar and 
often 
inconsequential.” 


•Europe:  “They are 
familiar, but not 
much on quality of 
the process more 
about results, number 
of mediated cases.” 
“Lack of knowledge 
and mediation/ adr 
culture.” 
•North America: 
“Used by agencies, 
provided as a tool for 
dispute resolution, 
train their lawyers 
and staff in either or 
both mediation and 
negotiation.” 







G
RO


W
IN


G M
EDIATIO


N (GO
VERN


M
EN


T) 
How often does the judiciary recommend mediation? Q35 


39 2016 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


Judicial branch most 
active. 
•While only 8.7% of 
respondents stated 
that judges 
recommend 
mediation all of the 
time, 41% of 
respondents believe 
that judges 
recommend 
mediation most or 
some of the time. 
•The highest 
proportion of 
judicial 
recommendations 
came from Asia 
(74%), Africa* 
(75%), Australia/NZ 
(60%), North 
America (46%), 
Latin America 
(45%), and Europe 
(41%). 
•Asia: “A procedural 
step in court/other 
proceedings” 
•Australia/NZ: 
“Judiciary 
departments might 
recommend 
frequently from 
position of 


overloaded 
schedules for family 
affairs or 
commercial 
relations.  While 
others are more 
optimistic and 
experienced with 
small claims for 
same relationship 
purposes and cost 
issues.” 
“Unfortunately, 
many of my 
colleagues have not 
experienced 
mediation as a 
participant or 
mediator and are 
unfamiliar with its 
scope and benefits.” 
•North America: 
“Time and resource 
management tool, 
directive to more 
appropriate process 
than litigation.” 
“Judges live in an 
adversarial 
environment and 
are comfortable 
with positional 
bargaining.  
Education is 


required for judges 
to appreciate other 
ways to manage 
disputes besides the 
litigation status 
quo.” 
•Europe:  “Due to 
lack of proper 
knowledge about 
mediation and due 
to its voluntary 
nature.” 
•Africa:  “Judges 
actually refer cases 
in their courst to the 
LMDC for mediation 
although the 
referrals could be 
better in terms of 
numbers.  Walk-in 
cases are presently 
more than court 
referred cases.” 
”[Mediation not] 
introduced enough.  
This is partially due 
to ignorance on the 
subject and 
disposition of 
leadership at the 
time.”  


*small base 







G
RO


W
IN


G M
EDIATIO


N (EDU
CATIO


N) 
What is the level of interest in Student Bodies in mediation? Q31                 How widespread are courses in mediation? Q32 
 


40 2015 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


Educators perceive 
large student interest 
in mediation. 
•53% of educators 
responding believe 
that their student 
bodies are either 
interested or 
exceedingly 
interested in 
mediation. 
•Regionally, the 
largest level of 
interest is in Europe 
(40%), Africa (35%) 
and North America 
(32%). 
•The least level of 
student interest is in 


the Middle East* (0), 
Australia/NZ (14%) 
and Asia (16%). 
•Africa: “A great deal 
of awareness 
creation is needed.” 
•Europe: “Universities 
should be interested 
however it is mostly 
treated as a hobby of 
a specific person and 
once that person 
leaves… the topic is 
removed from the 
curriculum.  All our 
efforts to start a 
master study…have 
failed so far.” 
 


•North America:  
“Courses are full.”  
“Small group of law 
students intensely 
interested; others are 
ignorant until they 
practice; some 
intense interest 
among 
undergraduate and 
graduate students in 
other fields.” 
•Asia: “Students’ 
interest in mediation 
seems to be 
increasing over the 
past few years.” 
 


Course offerings are 
rare. 
•Students (54%) 
generally show 
disappointment in the 
fact that course 
offerings are either rare 
or only offered as a 
secondary course 
related to the more 
primary course on 
arbitration. 
•Regionally, while only a 
small percentage of  
students in  
Australia/NZ (33%), 
Latin America* (7%) 
and Europe (5%) stated 


that courses were 
exceedingly 
widespread, the 
majority state  it is not 
widespread at all 
(Europe 56%; Asia 44%, 
Latin America 56%). 
•Asia:  “Mediation has 
gradually made inroads 
but its spread is 
restricted only to few 
law schools.” 
•Africa:  “Poorly run and 
usually on the back of 
arbitration.  
Theoretical.” 
•Europe:  “School 
programs should be 


revised at all 
educational levels.” 
•North America:  
“Widespread isn’t the 
issue.   Quality and 
focus are the 
challenges.” 
•Australia/NZ:  “Many 
institutes and programs 
adopt or disguise the 
skills and theories once 
boldly transparent 
within other programs 
like commercial 
relations or public 
administration.” 
 


*small base 







G
RO


W
IN


G M
EDIATIO


N (SERVICE PRO
VIDERS) 


What is the prognosis on the level of interest in mediation training courses over the next 5 years? Q36 


41 2015 International Mediation & ADR Survey 


Interest in training 
courses set to increase. 
•  63% of respondents 
believe that the level of 
interest in mediation 
training courses will 
increase over the next 
5 years – 21% believe it 
will increase rapidly. 
•Regionally, the quickest 
expected growth is in 
Africa (50%), Asia 
(38%), Latin America 
(31%), and the Middle 
East* (20%).  
Australia/NZ 
respondents felt that 
interest is set to 
plateau (40%). 
•Africa: “People are now 
about opportunities in 
building a career in 
mediation and the cost 
and time savings 
mediation provides.” 
“But not discerning as 
to quality of that 
training.” 
•Asia: “Many law and 
management students, 


lawyers, judges and 
other interested 
participants have all 
shown increasing 
interest in 
understanding theory 
and practice of 
mediation.  Demand for 
mediation’s growth… is 
going to register a 
significant growth in 
India in coming years.” 
•North America: 
“Interest will increase – 
but in which form of 
mediation?  
Empowering individuals 
to resolve, or morphing 
into a diluted legal 
process?” “It will 
increase rapidly in 
some sectors, for 
example where 
changes in the justice 
system require 
systemic retooling, or 
where workplace 
legislation forces 
training.” 
•Europe:  “Competition 


between training 
institutes is strong as 
hardly any criteria are 
set.” “Interest will 
inevitably decrease if 
no or few mediations 
are conducted.  Unless 
there is legislative 
support, mediation will 
not be able to become 
publicly known.” “The 
interest should be 
focussed on quality and 
advanced education.” 
•Australia/NZ: 
“Considering 
demographic trends, 
transitions and 
intercultural difference, 
it is the solution.” “I 
think we have had our 
peak.” ”Strong interest 
now.. Won’t plateau 
for some time.” 
•Latin America:  “I 
would love that the 
interest in training 
mediators increase 
more in business.” 


*small base 





		2016 international mediation & adr survey census of conflict management stakeholders and trends 

		introduction

		contents

		Overview and acknowledgements

		Executive summary

		Chapter 1 respondent profile and methodology

		Respondent profile and methodology

		Respondent profile (geographic) 

		Respondent profile (geographic)

		Respondent profile

		Respondent profile (age)

		Respondent profile (gender)

		Managing Work and conflicts

		Managing Work and conflicts

		Respondent profile (professional background)

		Respondent profile (professional background)

		Managing Work and Conflicts

		Managing Work and conflicts

		Managing Work and conflicts

		Managing Work and conflicts

		Relevant factors in Mediation practice

		Mediation practices

		Mediation practice

		Mediation practice

		Mediation practice

		Mediation practice

		Imi familiarity

		CHAPTER 4�MEDIATOR’S role/features/overview

		Mediator’s role/features/overview

		Mediator’s role/features/overview

		Mediator’s role/features/overview

		Mediator’s role/features/overview

		Mediator’s role/features/overview

		Mediator’s role/features/overview

		CHAPTER 5 growing mediation

		Growing mediation

		Growing mediation (service providers)

		Growing mediation (Government)

		Growing mediation (government)

		Growing mediation (education)

		Growing mediation (service providers)











ADRIA Board of Directors MEETING AGENDA November 19, 2016                            Page 1 of 3 
 


 


ADRIA BOARD MEETING AGENDA  


Friday, November 18, 2016 – Dinner 6-8 pm at  


Sawmill 


5505-101 Avenue, Edmonton, AB  T6A 0G7, 780-469-4090 


- 


Saturday, November 19, 2016 - Board of Directors meeting 8 am – 4 pm  


ADRIA classroom CE203 - Concordia University 


Benchmark 
Timings  


# Topic\Title Action Role Ref  
Materials 


FRIDAY 


6-8 pm 
 Dinner at Sawmill    


SATURDAY   ADRIA classroom CE203 - Concordia University    


8 am 1 WELCOME  & AGENDA REVIEW     


 1.1 
Welcome/Call to order 


Record time Dolores  


 1.2 Review of Agenda Items and addition of any items  
Review  & 


Amend/Adopt 
Dolores 1.2 


8:05 am 2 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S)    


 2.1 September 10, 2016 (Board meeting) 
Review & Adopt Dolores 2.1 


8:10 am 3 Declarations of Conflict of Interest 
   


8.15 am 4 Business arising (ADRIA)    


   4.1  AAMS representation Update Barrie  


   4.2 Participation in Law Day events Update Paul  


   4.3 PRT representation Update Dolores/Stan  


   4.4 Qualitative feedback on ADRIA training Update Paul  


   4.5 Board Minutes online Update Paul  


   4.6 Ft. McMurray insurance proposal Update Paul  


   4.7 Complaint files Update Paul/Barrie  


   4.8 Community Mediation Update Paul  


9:15 am 5 ADRIA Bylaw and Policy updates 
   


 5.1 ADRIA Advertising Policy Update Paul  


 5.2 
ADRIA Course Monitoring Policy 


Update Michelle 
 


 5.3 
LINK Membership 


Update Michelle  


9:30 am  
Health break 


   







ADRIA Board of Directors MEETING AGENDA November 19, 2016                            Page 2 of 3 
 


9:45 am 6 
Reports (*mandatory) 


   


 6.1 President  Dolores  


 6.2 ED*   Paul 6.2 


 6.3 Treasurer*   Kevin 
6.3.1 
6.3.2 
6.3.3 


 6.4 
Governance Committee 
-Board Evaluation 


 Michelle 
6.4.1 


6.4.2 


 6.5 
Board Committees/Task Forces 
-White Paper Action Plan Committee 


 Alasdair/ Paul 6.5.1 


 6.6 


ADRIC Reports 
-ADRIC Conference 
-ADRIC Rep 
-MoU Task Force (6.6.1) 
-Presidents’ Round Table (PRT)- no meeting 
-Other ADRIC Committees (as required) 
  -Advocacy 
  -Membership & Marketing 
  -Roster Development 
  -Insurance 
  -Education 


 


Dolores/Paul 
Wendy* 
Wendy 
Stan/Paul 
 
 
 
 
 
 


6.6.1 


11:00 am 7 
ADRIA/ADRIC – specific issues (Arising/New) 


   


 7.1 
ADRIC Rep Terms of Reference Discussion 


Dolores/ 


Wendy 
7.1 


 11:30 am 8 New Business 
   


 8.1 ADRIA/AAMS Grant proposals Info & Discussion 
Paul 
 


 


 8.2 2017 ADRIA Budget 
Review & 
Comment 


Paul/Kevin 
8.2.1 
8.2.2 


 8.3 Evaluative ADR Discussion Paul 8.3 


 8.4 CAB MoU Discussion Paul 8.4 


 8.5 IMI survey Information Paul 8.5 


 8.6 Edmonton ADR Luncheons Update Paul  


 8.7 Law Society complaint process vis-à-vis ADR Discussion Paul 8.7 


 8.8 Full members not renewed 2016 Information Paul 8.8 


 8.9 Recent Legal Precedents Information Paul 
8.9.1 
8.9.2 


12:30 pm  Lunch    







ADRIA Board of Directors MEETING AGENDA November 19, 2016                            Page 3 of 3 
 


1:00 pm  
In-Camera Sessions 
-Marketing & Communications 
-Strategic Planning 


   


As required 
 Health Break    


3:00 pm 9 Learning Opportunities – next meeting(s)  Paul  


 9.1   January, March Discussion   Dolores  


3:10 pm 10 Link to Membership, Events & Opportunities    


 10.1 Content of next ‘On Board’ Discussion Barrie  


 10.2 Invitations to next Board Dinner (Jan 20, CGY) 
Discussion & 


Decision 
Dolores  


3:15 pm 11 Calendar Review    


  
 


Information & 
Discussion 


ALL  


  Board of Directors Calendar    


  
-Jan 20, 21 2017 –CGY 
-March 17, 18 2017 – EDM 
-May 25-27 2017 – CGY (AGM & Orientation) 


Information ALL  


3:20 pm 12 
In-camera session  Board  


3.30 pm 


(NLT 4 pm) 
 Termination/Adjournment/Reflection  Dolores  


 








Board of Directors meeting 10 September 2016 – For Approval     Page 1 


Minutes of the Meeting of the Board of Directors 
of the ADR Institute of Alberta, held in the Jasper Boardroom, 
The Westin Calgary, Calgary, Alberta on September 10th, 2016 


 
 
Present:  Dolores Herman, QMed (President & Chair),  
   Barrie Marshall (Vice President),  
   Kevin Kelly, QArb, QMed (Treasurer),  
   John Welbourn, CArb (Secretary),  
   Gayle Desmeules, QMed (Director),  
   Joanne Munro, CMed (Director),  
   Michelle Simpson, CMed, CArb (Governance Committee Chair),  
   Wendy Hassen, CMed (ADRIC Rep), 


Alasdair MacKinnon, CMed, QArb (Director), 
   Paul Conway (Executive Director) (non-voting). 
 
Not attending:  Stan Galbraith (Past President, PRT Rep)  
   Jeffrey Jessamine, QArb (Director). 
 
 
1. Welcome & Agenda Review 
 
 1.1  Barrie Marshall called the meeting to order at 8:07 a.m. 
 


1.2 The proposed Agenda was reviewed. Item 4.3 - Introduction of the new Manager Marketing & 
Communications - the new Manager will not be attending. No additions were requested. Motion 
to approve the Agenda as presented was passed unanimously (Herman/Hassen). 


 
2.  Minutes of Previous Meetings 
 


2.1 Motion to approve the minutes of the meeting of June 4, 2016 and the revised minutes of the 
teleconference meeting of June 14, 2016 was passed unanimously (Hassen/MacKinnon).  


 
3. Declaration of Conflict of Interest 
 
Item 5.2 - ADRIA Course Monitoring Policy - Michelle Simpson reiterated that she had audited a course. 
 
Item 6.6 - Michelle Simpson and Joanne Munro confirmed that they are ADRIA course instructors. 
 
 No other potential conflicts were declared.  
 
4. Business Arising (ADRIA) 
 
 4.1 AAMS Representation 


Barrie Marshall advised that he had been approached by Don Goodfellow to join the AAMS Board 
of Directors. He will accept only if the ADRIA Board approves. Discussion ensued regarding the 
potential conflict that may arise if one person sits on both Boards. Barrie will clarify if the 
invitation is intended for him personally or as a member of the ADRIA Board. He will decline if the 
former and may accept if the latter. 
 


4.2 Participating in Law Day Events 
 







Board of Directors meeting 10 September 2016 – For Approval     Page 2 


The Executive Director has contacted the Edmonton and Calgary Law Day chairs and will contact 
the provincial chair regarding ADRIA participation in 2017 events. He proposed mock arbitration 
and mediation role plays as contributions. Michelle Simpson is the chair of the Canadian Bar 
Association Alberta ADR section and will assist in coordinating ADRIA’s participation. 


 
 4.3  Introduction of Manager Marketing & Communications 
 


The ED apologized that the new Manager, Kristy Rhyason, was not able to attend. He outlined her 
skills in social media and webdesign and provided information on the terms of her contract with 
ADRIA. 


 
5. ADRIA Bylaw and Policy Updates 
 
 5.1 ADRIA Advertising Policy 
 


The ED advised that a committee had been struck which intended to present a draft policy to the 
November, 2016 Board meeting. The issues involved are complex but proposed that ADRIA accept 
advertising in the newsletter and on the website from members and for member events, as well 
as paid advertising for non-members and their events. Joanne Munro questioned including paid 
non-member events that conflict with ADRIA courses. Wendy Hassen noted an historical tension 
between ADRIA members offering for-profit courses that compete with ADRIA courses. 


 
Michelle Simpson requested that the draft policy be vetted in advance by the Policy Committee.   


 
 5.2 ADRIA Course Monitoring Policy 
 


Motion to adopt the draft policy as presented was passed unanimously. (Simpson / Herman) 
 


Action Item - Michelle Simpson to incorporate the new Policy into the Board Policy.   
 
 5.3 LINK Membership 
   


The ED proposed the $75.00 ADRIA LINK Membership be expanded to include other categories of 
non-income earning individuals (e.g. full time post-secondary students, retirees, unemployed due 
to personal, family or medical circumstances). The proposal has been reviewed by ADRIC and 
considered by the affiliates.  


 
Motion to adopt the expanded ADRIA LINK Membership as presented was passed unanimously. 
(Munro / Herman) 


 
Action Item - Michelle Simpson to determine if this is a policy to be included in Board Policy. 


 
6. Reports   
 
 6.1 President  
 


Dolores Herman advised that ADRIC had felt unable to recognize Wendy Hassen as the ADRIA 
representative on the ADRIC Board until Chuck Smith’s term had expired. When requested Chuck 
had resigned from the ADRIC Board to facilitate Wendy’s appointment. The issue is timing - ADRIC 
Directors’ terms in office do not coincide with ADRIA Directors’ terms. 


 







Board of Directors meeting 10 September 2016 – For Approval     Page 3 


Dolores also noted that there had been discussion regarding Stan Galbraith, the ADRIA past 
president, participating in the Presidents Round Table (“PRT”) with the current presidents of the 
other affiliates. The matter has been resolved.  


 
Dolores will be attending the October PRT at the ADRIC conference in Toronto.  


 
 6.2 Executive Director 
 
  Report is attached. 
 


Joanne Munro expressed concern that students completing course requirements were not getting 
sufficient practical experience before applying for the Q.Med. designation. John Welbourn and 
Michelle Simpson expressed similar concern regarding Q.Arb. designation applicants. 
Barrie Marshall suggested the PRT should be advised of the ADRIA Board’s deep concern that the 
Q.Med. and Q.Arb. designations lead the public to incorrectly believe that designation holders 
have sufficient practical expertise in the field indicated. 


 
Dolores requested that in addition to the quantitative analysis of ADRIA courses offered, the 
Executive Director also provide the qualitative analysis of courses delivered.  


  
6.5 White Paper Action Plan Committee 


 
Alasdair MacKinnon advised that the White Paper had been circulated widely with subsequent 
presentations to Provincial Ministers and ADMs, the Queen’s Bench Associate Chief Justice, 
Provincial Court Deputy Judge, and other provincial and federal agencies. Presentations and 
meetings will continue with a further report and recommendations to be delivered at the 
November Board meeting. 


 
 6.3 Treasurer 
 


Kevin Kelly reviewed the balance sheet and comparative year-to-date analysis. Net income to date 
is ~$91,000.00 generated primarily from ADRIA education (course and private contract) programs. 
He noted that private training contracts are important to maintain future income and growth. 


 
 6.4 Governance Committee 
 
  No report. 
 
 6.6 ADRIC Reports 
 


6.6.1  ADRIC Rep  
 


Wendy Hassen noted an ADRIC Board teleconference scheduled for September 15. She 
asked for Board clarification of what was appropriate information for an affiliate’s 
representative to share with the ADRIC Board and for that representative to share with 
the affiliate Board. The concern is a potential for conflict arising between the individual’s 
separate responsibilities to the 2 Boards. 


 
ADRIC circulates meeting agenda in advance of the event. The Board consensus was the 
ADRIC representative should review the agenda with the ADRIA President and Executive 
Director prior to the ADRIC meeting and declare any perceived conflict at the start of the 
meeting.   







Board of Directors meeting 10 September 2016 – For Approval     Page 4 


   
  6.6.2  MoU Task Force 
   


Wendy Hassen advised that the Task Force was still waiting for responses from some 
affiliates and stakeholders. She anticipates further developments at a joint MoU and PRT 
meeting at the ADRIC conference. Wendy will report at the November Board meeting. 


 
  6.6.3 Presidents’ Round Table 
 


The Executive Director and Stan Galbraith had attended a September 6, 2016 
teleconference. Minutes of the meeting were circulated. 


 
  6.6.4 Advocacy 
 
   No report. 
 
  6.6.5 Membership and Marketing 
 


(from the minutes of September 6, 2016 PRT meeting) ADRIC will be ready to launch iMIS 
by the end of the month. A demonstration will be available at the Toronto conference. 


 
  6.6.7 Roster Development 
 


Michele Simpson advised that the office of each provincial ombudsman had been 
contacted to inform of ADRIC member services offered. Attention is now turning to 
contacting the corporate world. 


 
  6.6.8 Education 
 


Michelle Simpson advised that ADRIC intends to redevelop the National Arbitration 
course.  Funding has been allocated in the ADRIC budget. 


 
  6.6.9 Insurance 
 


The Executive Director continues to work with the national insurer to clarify and expand 
coverage. He noted that ADRIC and ADRIO had recently signed a joint 3 year renewal.  
ADRIA has worked with ADRIC and restructured its coverage at a significantly reduced 
cost.   


 
7. ADRIA / ADRIC - specific issues 
 
 7.1 Sharing of Associate Member Data 
 


The Executive Director advised that ADRIC does not receive associate member data from all 
affiliates. Privacy of information and ADRIA privacy policy are concerns. Further, full ADRIA 
membership is diminished if associate ADRIA members received all ADRIC info and full member 
communications. 


 
Michelle Simpson suggested that the matter is one of policy to be addressed at an ADRIA AGM. 


 
 7.3 Waiver for Retired Judges 
 







Board of Directors meeting 10 September 2016 – For Approval     Page 5 


ADRIC has determined that the waiver will not be automatic, but rather on an individual applicant 
basis only. 


 
 7.4 Pro-rated designation fees 
 


ADRIC has approved a discount schedule to be determined by the date an applicant’s designation 
is approved, and that includes a second quarter discount. 


 
 7.5 Instructor Licensing MoU et al. 
 


The Executive Director advised that a 5 year MoU has been signed with ADRIC regarding licensing 
fees to be paid by ADRIA for the exclusive right to deliver ADRIC introductory mediation and 
arbitration courses in Alberta. 


 
Joanne Munro advised that the ADRIC instructor application form is excessively long and requires 
too much detail.  


 
Lunch Break - 12:00 noon to 1:15 p.m. 
 
 7.9 ADRIC Corporate Memberships 
 


ADRIC has asked if ADRIA would grant membership to an Alberta representative of an ADRIC 
corporate member.  


 
Motion approved unanimously: ADRIA supports the proposal to grant associate member status to 
an Alberta representative of a current ADRIC corporate member based on the ADRIC program and 
nominal fee structure outlined in the ADRIC correspondence of August 24, 2016. If there are any 
changes to the program, including fee structure, then ADRIA will be consulted 
(Hassen/Desmeules). 


 
8. New Business 
 
 8.1 Member access to ADRIA Minutes 
 


Action item: Once approved, Board minutes will be posted in the Member Portal. The use of 
acronyms should be avoided. 


 
 8.4 Membership pins 
 


Action item: Executive Director to consult the membership on the $ value and recognition value of 
membership pins. 


   
10.  Link to Membership, Events & Opportunities  
 
 10.2 Invitations to the next Board dinner (November) 
 


Invitations should include AFMS president and executive, Daryl Willetts, Peter Portlock, the 
Edmonton members of the White Paper Task Force, and the Dispute Resolution Network 
executive. 


 
8.  New Business (resumed) 
 







Board of Directors meeting 10 September 2016 – For Approval     Page 6 


 8.2 Community Mediation MJRC / CMCS 
 


The Executive Director advised that community mediation programs have difficult financial issues 
resulting from reduced government grants. ADRIA’s options to assist were discussed. Joanne 
Munro pointed out that ADRIA has students that need practical experience and MRJC has clients 
needing mediation services. The Executive Director suggested that space in the ADRIA offices be 
made available. 


 
Action item: The Executive Director to ask MJRC for guidance on how ADRIA might assist. 


 
7. ADRIA / ADRIC - specific issues (resumed)  
 
 7.2 ADRIC Committees & Communications 
 


The Executive Director advised that he and Gayle Desmeules had started to clarify how ADRIC 
committees communicate and how to communicate with ADRIC. Wendy Hassen suggested that 
ADRIA not start the discussion with ADRIC until all affiliates have an opportunity to provide input 
at the Toronto conference. 


 
 7.6 Mediation designation experience requirements 
 


The Executive Director advised that ADRIO accepts co-mediations for the experience component 
of the Q.Med. designation. Clearly the designation requirements are not applied uniformly by the 
affiliates. The Board concurs that the C.Med and C.Arb requirements are minimum standards and 
reiterated the need for ADRIC to revisit use of the term “Qualified”. 


 
 7.7 Course Accreditation Process 
 


The Executive Director noted that ADRIO receives revenue from ADRIC for providing Ontario 
based courses.  ADRIC should consider sharing revenue with ADRIA for national accreditation 
courses provided by ADRIA. Discussion ensued on the need to consider the pros and cons of 
obtaining national accreditation of provincial training and education courses. 


 
 7.8 ADRIC Awareness Sub Committee 
 


The Executive Director noted that there may be individuals on ADRIC committees that are not 
ADRIA members or supported by the ADRIA Board. 


 
Action item: The Executive Director to request ADRIC to advise of any such appointments. 


  
8. New Business (resumed)  
 
 8.3  ADR Services Update 
 
  8.3.1 Select & Appoint 
 


The Executive Director advised that additional promotional materials for this service 
should be in place by the new year. 


 
  8.3.2 Directory 
 


The Executive Director advised that a 2017 directory listing will require a designation. 







Board of Directors meeting 10 September 2016 – For Approval     Page 7 


     
  8.3.3  Document Sharing 
 


The Executive Director explained that the concept, yet to be developed, is that ADRIA act 
as a neutral 3rd party (escrow agent) for the delivery and exchange of documents and 
records primarily in arbitration proceedings. 


 
 8.5 ACR Conference 
 
  Baltimore, Maryland, on September 29, 2016. 
 
 8.6  Meeting with Justice Minister 
 


The Executive Director confirmed the meeting was positive and constructive. 
 
 8.7 GOA Practicum 
 


The Executive Director noted the practicum offers students who have completed ADRIA’s 10 day 
Separation and Divorce Mediation course an opportunity to gain practical experience and be 
mentored by experienced family mediators with Alberta Justice. GOA benefits by potentially 
growing its staff and roster of mediators. ADRIA benefits from the increased exposure to and 
opportunities flowing from the course.      


 
 8.8 Fort McMurray Insurance Proposal 
 


ADRIA had received a request from the insurance industry to submit a proposal for assistance in 
resolving insurance issues arising from the Spring, 2016 wildfires.  


 
 8.9 ADRIA Contractor Manual 
 


The Executive Director expressed many thanks to Tammy and Jocelyn for the development of the 
Manual. 


 
 8.10 Evaluative ADR 
 
  Discussion deferred to next meeting. 
 
9. Learning Opportunities - next meeting 
 
 9.1 Next Meeting 
 
  November 17 and 18, 2016 in Edmonton. 
 
 9.2 Strategic Planning 
 


The Strategic Plan will be reviewed at the January, 2017 meeting. This meeting will also include 
Board evaluations and Policy review. 


 
Action item: Michelle Simpson to develop a survey / questionnaire to assist with the Board 
evaluations. 


 
10.  Link to Membership, Events & Opportunities (resumed)  







Board of Directors meeting 10 September 2016 – For Approval     Page 8 


 
 10.1 “On Board” 
 


The Executive Director explained this is now an article in the newsletter. The next edition will be 
October / November.  


 
11. In Camera Session  
 
 Not recorded. 
 
12. Adjournment  


The meeting ended shortly after 4 p.m. 
   








ADRIA Full members, not renewed in 2016 8.8
Last name Preferred E-mail City Province Notes


Boyes Qmed aboyes@hotmail.com Fort McMurray Alberta moved out of AB


Bellous Qmed ken@practisingcollaboration.com Edmonton Alberta semi-retired, let Qmed 


lapse, will not renew


Curran john@johncurran.ca Nanoose Bay British Columbia


Dronyk QMed dymphny@gmail.com Calgary Alberta no money to renew


Garcelon Qarb mike@garcelon.ca Saskatoon Saskatchewan moved out of AB


Gunn roger@winwinhrsolutions.com Edmonton Alberta complaint


Hodgert QMed dhodgert@shaw.ca Winnipeg Manitoba moved out of AB


Innes QMed tasha.m.innes@gmail.com Victoria British Columbia moved out of AB


Kosevich mira@novusstrategies.com Calgary Alberta moved out of AB


Lavergne alavergne@rmrf.com Edmonton Alberta


Lawson tedlawson@lawsonphillips.ca Calgary Alberta retired


Love nancylove@pulseinstitute.com St. Albert Alberta retired


Matheson brian.matheson@shaw.ca St. Albert Alberta doesn't wish to renew


McCoy joycemccoy@gmail.com Didsbury Alberta no answer


Perry andersonmediationservices@gmail.com Stoney Plain Alberta member for one year


Peters karen.peters@neb-one.gc.ca Vancouver British Columbia no answer


Piehl mahapiehl@gmail.com Upper WhiteheadNova Scotia sick


Redmond Carb james.redmond@shaw.ca Edmonton Alberta retired


Reid b.reid@longlaw.ca Edmonton Alberta


Robillard Cmed trobillard@pembina.com Calgary Alberta every year a problem, 


this year no answer


Sawchuk thom_sawchuk@yahoo.ca Calgary Alberta no answer


Shim QArb jaehun710@gmail.com Calgary Alberta Will not renew, does not 


see value of Qarb


Viehweger QMed ingo.viehweger@travelers.com Calgary Alberta no answer


Yasui Qmed, Qarb dyasui@brownleelaw.com Calgary Alberta retired, nowhere to be 


found


Zakreski janesays@shaw.ca Edmonton Alberta


Zerr Qmed pzerr@shaw.ca Sherwood Park Alberta no answer



mailto:ken@practisingcollaboration.com#






Executive Director’s Report – November 2016 
 


Much has changed since we last met, and our financial fortunes have soured.  There are some red lights 


to negotiate in 2017, and I will be seeking Board guidance in this regard.  


 
Note - Potential elements of this report that have been adequately addressed elsewhere in the Board’s agenda are, for the most 


part, not included herein.Dashboard display elements continue be incorporated slowly into Board presentation materials, and 


will progressively linked to ADRIA’s strategic plan and success indications.  Dashboard metrics are intended to provide Board 


members with clear, succinct and meaningful data, charts and indicators upon which they may base their decisions, establish 


new initiatives, and provide strategic direction.  It is important that all Board members provide feedback and suggestions 


regarding the topics, materials and metrics presented – what’s useful, what’s not, and what might be needed in the future. 


 


Designations  
Tammy Borowiecki, Director Professional Development 


Truus Souman, Executive & Membership Coordinator 


Jon Souman, Chair MDC 


John Welbourn, Chair ADC 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 As the September application window closed, 


we were able to forward a total of 27 approved 


applications from the two designation 


committees to ADRIC. 


 This makes 2016 a record year for ADRIA with 


46 complete designation applications (all of 


which have been or are likely to be approved by 


ADRIC) 


 The next application window is March 2017. 


 Alberta continues to lead the country in terms 


of growth in designations. 


 ADRIA staff continue to note and observe upon 


differences in how each province administers 


and qualifies those with designations.  This was 


of particular concern to the Aga Khan CAB as 


they sought national recognition of their in-


house mediation training program from ADRIC. 


 An ADRIC workshop on this issue wasscheduled 


and well attended atthe Toronto Conference, 


with the goal of having all designation 


assessment committees across the country 


working with common standards. The session 


was productive, but revealed even more 


differences in how the ADRIC designation 


criteria is interpreted in different provinces – 


most notably with respect to what constitutes 


the additional 100 hours of related (ADR?) 


training as required for a C.Med application.  







Membership 


Paul Conway, Executive Director 


Truus Souman, Executive & Membership Coordinator 


 


Membership remains stable, and we have continued to forecast a 90% renewal rate for our 2017 Budget 


(50% for Associate members).  We have recently launched an ADRIA membership drive, with incentives 


for both new members and current members who can introduce a colleague to ADRIA.  Organizational 


memberships have generated some recent interest from the public sector, with two new memberships 


bringing our total to three (AER, Health Canada, and the AB Labour Board).  Organizational membership 


details are still awaiting finalization in concert with ADRIC, but will be actively marketed in 2017. 


 


Reporting date Full Members, 
which includes 
an ADRIC 
membership 


Associate Members* 
(*non-ADRIC Mbrs) 
+ Org Learner Mbrs* 
+ LINK members 
(see note below) 


Total ADRIA 
Members, 
including non-
ADRIC Mbrs 


Paid 
Organizational 
Members 
 


BoD Meeting Nov 2016 388 160 + 2 +3 553 3 
BoD Meeting Sep 2016* 388 173 + 2 563  


AGM June 2016** 381 165 546  
     End-2015 380 163+2 545  


AGM June 2015 369 150+2     521  
     End-2014 361 144+4     509  


AGM May 2014 338 145 483  
End-2013 328 151 479  


End-2012 329 102 431  


ADRIA Sep 2012 
(Stand-up of ADRIA) 


311 92 403  


AAMS (May 2012) 354 113 467  


AAMS (May 2011) 333 104 437  


     


ADRIA High (BoDMtg)  
Sep 2016* 


388 173+2    563  


Previous recorded low 
(ADRIA start Sep 2012) 


311 92 403  


* end-Aug stats 
** end-May stats 


    


NOTE:  The category of Organizational Learner Members is similar to an Associate Member; typically 
Organizational Member employees or other ADRIC Affiliate members.  LINK members are connected 
to ADRIC and  include full-time students, retired members and those without employment income. 







Online ADR Directory 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
Professional Development & Education 
Tammy Borowiecki, Director Professional Development 


Jocelyn Christian, Education Assistant 


 


September-November 2016 Courses: 
 


Edmonton 


• Communications in ADR (September) – 9 students (including 2 mid-course withdrawals) 


• National Introductory Arbitration (October) – Cancelled 


• Conflict Management for HR Professionals (November) – 5 students (at last minute reduced to 4) 


• National Introductory Mediation (November) – Cancelled 


• Specialty Courses: 


o Conflict Coaching (September) – 5 students 


o Mediation Case Development (October) - Cancelled 


 


 


 


 We currently feature 79 members in the directory   


 Effective January 2017, a national designation will be 


required in order to be listed.  We will likely lose 10-12 


listings as a consequence. 


 Anyone currently approved, but not holding a national 


designation, will be allowed to maintain their listing until 


their membership renewal date (but not beyond). 


 Members have been repeatedly notified by newsletter 


and email of this policy change, and ADRIC is 


contemplating a similar policy for its ADR Connect feature 


 Total revenue for 2016 exceeded $8300 







Calgary 


• Conflict Management for HR Professionals (September) - Cancelled 


• Communications in ADR (October) – Cancelled 


• National Introductory Arbitration (October) –  6 students (plus 2 last minute withdrawals) 


• National Introductory Mediation (November) – Cancelled 


• Specialty Courses: 


o Conflict Coaching (October) - Cancelled 


 


Private Training  


Edmonton 


• Professional Home Builders Institute (November) – 5 students 


Calgary  


• Professional Home Builders Institute (November) – 6 students (projected) 


 


Upcoming December and 2017 courses and student registrations  
 


Edmonton 


• Multi-Party Mediation (December) – 7 students 


• Communications in ADR (January) – 1 student 


• Separation and Divorce Mediation: Module 1 (January) – 2 students 


• National Introductory Mediation (February) – 2 students 


• Separation and Divorce Mediation: Module 2 – 1 student 


• National Introductory Arbitration (April) – 1 student 


• Conflict Management for HR Professionals (April) – 0 students 


• Restorative practices (June) – 0 students 


Calgary 


• Communications in ADR (January) – 2 students 


• Conflict Coaching (February) – 1 student 


• Conflict Management for HR Professionals (February) – 0 students 


• National Introductory Mediation (March) – 0 students 


• Separation and Divorce Mediation: Module 1 (April) – 1 student 


• National Introductory Arbitration (April) – 1 student 


• Communications in ADR (April) – 0 students 


 


Private Contracts 


 No private contracts scheduled 


 


General Information 


• We have cancelled numerous courses this fall, including National Introductory Mediation, 


National Introductory Arbitration, Mediation Case Development in Edmonton and 


Communications in ADR, Conflict Management for HR Professionals, National Introductory 


Mediation, and Conflict Coaching in Calgary 







• We are also significantly behind in registrations for 2017 courses compared to the same time last 


year.  


• In an attempt to attract Calgary students to our program, we have scheduled a Communications 


in ADR class that runs only on weekends (April/May). We are testing the theory that getting time 


off work to take courses is an obstacle for some.  


• We have been investigating web-based delivery options for the How to Start an ADR Business 


course. 


• Web delivery of courses and content is high on our list of priorities to get up and running. 


Webinar style delivery of courses will be useful for several different projects we are working on 


(e.g. CAB). 


• We have completed the first stage in the redevelopment of the Consensus Decision Making 


course.  We hope to have it sufficiently complete before Christmas so that we can schedule the 


course and open registrations in January.   


• We are working with BCAMI to provide our experience and expertise in delivering the 


Communications in ADR & Mediation Courses with the objective of developing capacity within 


BCAMI to run their own programs.  We will also be licensing the Communications in ADR Course 


to BCAMI.  


• We have re-organized our private training curriculum to make it easier for potential clients to 


understand options for half-day, one-day and two-day workshops for various audiences. We are 


working towards putting this content on website with hopes of soliciting more private contracts. 


The increased information on the website will also assist in optimizing our marketing efforts. 


• We have updated our course withdrawal policy as we were having people drop courses at the last 


minute wishing to transfer their registration to the next scheduled course.  The new policy 


reflects the administrative and material costs of last minute withdrawals and mid-course drops.  


• Qualitative course feedback will be provided to the board on an annual basis at the first meeting 


of the year. 


• We have had our first two applicants for the Separation and Divorce Mediation practicum 


program in partnership with Family Justice. Family Justice hopes to have the students start the 


practicum by the new year.  


• Tammy spent a half day with the Conciliation and Arbitration Board (CAB) at their national 


meeting held in Edmonton observing some training and role-play practice groups. We continue to 


work with CAB in accrediting their programs and hope to provide some training webinars for 


them in 2017. 


• Paul and Tammy had a telephone conference with the new contact for the MTI program to 


discuss continuing our partnership and possible growth opportunities. We feel they are much on 


the same page as us and look forward to making progress on this front over the next several 


months. We are currently in a holding pattern as they update their course manuals and website.  


• Barbara Gilbert left ADRIC mid-October. Barbara was our primary contact for the National 


training programs and very supportive of our needs. As of yet, her position has not been filled. 


 


 


 







Professional Development & Education notes from the ED: 
 
Although we had added courses last Spring to meet demand, and delivered on a lucrative private contract 


to AHS, our Fall course cancellations meant the loss of over $40K in budgeted revenue.  This dramatically 


reduced our surplus from a high of $100K to a year-end projection of under $15K.  At peak, funds were 


invested in the Communications & Marketing transition AND in social media marketing campaigns.  Funds 


were also expended to complete the course design of SDM, MPM, online how-to-start-an ADR business, 


and restructuring our training programs for the private training market – all sound investments for 2017 


and beyond.  As presented in September, our instructor and coach contracting manuals and online web 


supports were also completed this year.  Given the low Fall registrations, the hours of our Education 


Assistant have already been reduced.  


 


As we approach year-end and monitor the Winter & Spring course registrations, it is clear that additional 


courses are already at risk.  Deferred revenue for 2017 courses is a fraction of what we had in the bank at 


this point last November.  Budget preparations have been difficult and very conservative with respect to 


Education revenue – but even that is at risk.  December budget adjustments, and Q1 & Q2 fiscal reviews 


in early 2017 will be extremely important, and may necessitate further reductions in staff hours, etc. 


 


I am satisfied that we have the right people representing ADRIA on all of the national ADRIC Educational 


Committees (Deborah Howes, Tammy, Joanne, Michelle, etc.).  The lack of ADRIC staff resources to 


support the national training programs is problematic but manageable.  Actually, I have suggested to 


ADRIC that they contract these support services to ADRIA.  Our partnership with the BCAMI holds 


promise, and has allowed us to develop a licensing fee structure for our Communications in ADR course.  I 


have begum approaching other Affiliates in this regard, and we will consider similar licensing 


arrangements for other ADRIA-owned courses (HR, SDM, MPM, etc.).   The effective marketing of private 


ADR training in 2017, in concert with an organizational membership drive, remains a priority.   


 


Strategic Planning  
 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 Board consideration of our current fiscal challenge is the focus 


of our November meeting 


 A review of ADRIA's 2016 milestones, accomplishments and 


shortfalls has been deferred to the Board’s January meeting, 


along with an update on our fiscal projections for 2017 


 The ADRIA member satisfaction survey will be launched in the 


December/January timeframe, with the results made available 


for Board consideration in early 2017 


 


 







ADR Networking Events & Luncheons   


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


IT, Communications & Marketing  
 


Introduction of the new ADRIC iMIS membership database has been delayed, causing problems for ADRIA 


members wishing to access their ADRIC portal.  ADR Connect is also off line.  Hopefully this will be fully 


resolved before January, when designation fees are payable.  There has been no impact on ADRIA, as 


Alberta & Atlantic continue to be supported by Wild Apricot.  An initial analysis of the iMIS costs suggest 


that it would cost ADRIA $10-15K to buy-in, plus annual fees estimated at approximately $3K per year.  


iMIS functionality, with respect to supporting the ADRIA business model and website, is yet to be 


evaluated (but I’m thankful that we didn’t buy-in on the initial implementation) 


 


Kristy Rhyason will be meeting with the Board this Saturday to outline her Marketing & Communications 


efforts since the summer, and seek insights regarding 2017 from the Directors.   


 


 Two low-cost ADR Networking events were hosted by ADRIA in 


October, although the Edmonton event was not particularly well 


attended.  The events were free, and the Calgary event was 


generously sponsored by Jim McCartney.  Charitable donations 


were accepted in support of tour Community Mediation 


partners (MRJC & CMCS)  


 ADR Networking events will be scheduled for April or May, 


hopefully sponsored, and consideration will be given to changing 


the format (speaker, recognizing designations, etc.) 


 ADRIA also hosted White Paper feedback sessions in Calgary and 


Edmonton for our membership – both were attended by over 15 


members, and valuable feedback was received.  Two online 


opportunities were also made available, for those unable to 


attend in person. 


 The Calgary ADR luncheons continue to draw about 25 


attendees per session, and the luncheons are well supported by 


a committee of four (4) ADRIA members.  The ED usually 


attends, and provides connectivity between ADRIA and our 


Calgary membership. 


 We finally have a volunteer for a 2017 series of Edmonton ADR 


luncheons, and hope to announce our first speaker in the 


December newsletter (for a January 11th luncheon) 


 ADRIA funded a CR Day event in Grand Prairie, organized by the 


local ADRIA membership 


 The Bridging the Distance Committee has transformed itself into 


an all-Alberta Community of  Practice and Professional 


Development Forum serving those outside of Calgary & 


Edmonton.  The first session focused on White Paper feedback, 


and the December session will feature Kristy speaking about 


using social media to enhance your ADR business. 


 







   Outreach 
 


A verbal report will be presented, but outreach activities since September have included: 


 


 Aga Khan Conciliation & Arbitration Board (CAB) 


 Foundation of Administrative Justice (FOAJ) 


 Alberta Family Mediation Society (AFMS) 


 Alberta Restorative Justice Association (ARJA) 


 Mediation & Restorative Justice Centre (MRJC) 


 Community Mediation Calgary Society (CMCS) 


 Peer Mediation & Skills Training (PMAST) 


 Canadian Bar Association, Alberta (CBA) 


 Mediation Training Institute (MTI) and Eckerd College, Florida 


 Dispute Resolution Network (DRN) 


 Ministry of Justice, Resolution Services  


 Reforming the Family Justice System initiative (RFJS) 


 Alberta Dispute Resolution Centre 


 Municipal Affairs and MDRS Advisory Group  


 Mount Royal University (MRU) Advisory Group 


 CF/DND Conflict Management Program & Edmonton Garrison CRC 


 Canadian Motor Vehicle Arbitration Plan (CAMVAP) 


 People for People Conference Planning Committee (P4P) 


 International Conflict Resolution  Day Committee (CRDay) 


 ADRIC Affiliates (notably BCAMI, ADRIO and ADRAI) 


 ADRIC Committees (Insurance, PRT, etc) 


 


Human Resources    


ADRIA is remains at full strength with 7 Full & Part time staff (2 employees, and 5 Contractors).  Any new 


hiring considerations have been suspended (BDO, volunteer coordinator, Calgary, etc), and the hours of 


some staff have been reduced.  Budgeted staff hours for 2017 have similarly been reduced, awaiting 


improvements to the ecomomy and/or new revenue streams to develop.  Budgeted ED hours for 2017 


have been reduced from 4.0 to 3.5 days per week commencing in January.  Pay increases for the staff 


have been capped at 2%, and even this increase is subject to Board consideration.   







 
 


These notes will augment the Treasurer’s report, accompanied by the end-October financial reports from 


Karen.  I have added some financial summaries in the graphs below.As reported in September, we had 


experienced a nice bounce in the first half of 2016, but registrations were unexpectedly down for the Fall.   


We thus did not rush into any new hiring or expenditure decisions, opting instead to seek a better 


understanding of the dynamics at play.   


 


A balanced and conservative budget continues to be the touchstone for all important spending decisions, 


and the essential Q3 review allowed us to re-evaluate our spending Priorities in the latter half of 2016.  


 


 


Cash+Reserves: 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


0


20000


40000


60000


80000


100000


120000


140000


160000


180000


Ja
n


-1
5


Fe
b


-1
5


M
ar


-1
5


A
p


r-
1


5


M
ay


-1
5


Ju
n


-1
5


Ju
l-


1
5


A
u


g-
1


5


Se
p


-1
5


O
ct


-1
5


N
o


v-
1


5


D
e


c-
1


5


Ja
n


-1
6


Fe
b


-1
6


M
ar


-1
6


A
p


r-
1


6


M
ay


-1
6


Ju
n


-1
6


Ju
l-


1
6


A
u


g-
1


6


Se
p


-1
6


O
ct


-1
6


Finan
cial 
footn
otes 







Cash+Reserves vs Deferred Revenue: 


 
 


Total Member Equity (2012-2016): 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


-20000


0


20000


40000


60000


80000


100000


120000


140000


-40000


-20000


0


20000


40000


60000


80000


100000


120000


140000


2014 


2015 


2016 


2013 







Conferences & Learning Events 
The 2016 ADRIC Conference in Toronto was well represented by ADRIA members, including Dolores, 


Wendy and the ED.  In truth, I spent far more time attending the many simultaneous ADRIC committee 


meetings than in the conference sessions, but that proved to be better use of my time.  At best, the 


ADRIC Conference broke even, as there was perhaps only 100 paid attendees (of the 200 in attendance).  


Extra catering was provided in-house for ADRIC meetings, staff and Board members just to allow ADRIC to 


meet its contractual obligations to the hotel.  I remain convinced that ADRIC needs to fundamentally 


change its approach to planning their national conferences. 


 


The next ADRIC Conference was announced for St John’s Newfoundland in late October 2017.  ADRIA’s 


fiscal situation will determine the extent to which we can support ADRIA representation, although 


Wendy’s participation will be covered by ADRIC. 


 


Approval in Principle has been secured from the GOA/DRN to commence planning an all-Alberta ADR 


Forum and Learning event for 2017 or 2018, as a GOA/Non-Profit partnership.  An executive planning 


committee meeting is scheduled for November 22nd, hosted by ADRIA, with representation from Justice, 


other GOA agencies, ADRIA and the AFMS.     


Yours in ADR,     Paul Conway| Executive Director   ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA) 





















ADR Institute of Alberta
BALANCE SHEET


October 31, 2016


November 08, 2016 4:24PM 1 Report 1


ASSETS


CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 62,893 $
Reserve Funds 64,018 
Accounts Receivable 2,155 
Prepaid Expenses 5,032 
Due from ADRIC - License 2,336 


Total Current Assets 136,434 $


PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Office Furniture & Fixtures 2,861 $
Computer Equipment 6,218 
Classroom Furniture & Equipment 1,771 


Total Property and Equipment 10,850 $


OTHER ASSETS
DRN Conference 4,863 $


Total Other Assets 4,863 $


TOTAL ASSETS 152,147 $


LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY


CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 0 $
Accrued Liabilities 19,740 
Deferred Revenue 45,709 
Due to ADRIC - Membership 1,157 
Due to ADRIC - License 6,675 
Payroll Liabilities 417 
GST/HST Payable (584)
DRN Conference 4,364 


Total Current Liabilities 77,478 $


LONG TERM LIABILITIES


Total Long Term Liabilities 0 $


TOTAL LIABILITIES 77,478 $


MEMBERS' EQUITY
General Surplus 19,644 $
Net Income (Loss) 55,025 


Total Members' Equity 74,669 


TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY 152,147 $








 


 


In the Court of Appeal of Alberta 


Citation: Henderson v Henderson, 2016 ABCA 256 


 


Date: 20160909 


Docket: 1603-0111-AC 


Registry: Edmonton 


 


 


Between: 
 


Robyn Sarah Henderson 
 


Respondent  


(Plaintiff) 


 


- and - 


 


Miles Andrew Henderson 
 


Appellant  


(Defendant) 


 


 


 


 


_______________________________________________________ 


 


The Court: 


The Honourable Mr. Justice Frans Slatter 


The Honourable Mr. Justice J.D. Bruce McDonald 


The Honourable Madam Justice Sheila Greckol 


_______________________________________________________ 


 


 


Memorandum of Judgment 


Delivered from the Bench 
 


 


Appeal from the Order by 


The Honourable Mr. Justice D. Lee 


Dated the 23rd day of March, 2016  


Filed the 24th day of May, 2016 


(Docket: 4803 163419) 


20
16


 A
B


C
A


 2
56


 (
C


an
LI


I)







 


 


_______________________________________________________ 


 


Memorandum of Judgment 


Delivered from the Bench 
_______________________________________________________ 


 


McDonald, J.A. (for the Court): 


[1] The parties reached a mediated settlement of their matrimonial issues and a written 


Settlement Agreement was signed on November 11, 2013. After lengthy discussions, the form of 


Divorce Judgment and Corollary Relief Order (which had been prepared by counsel for the 


respondent) was approved by counsel for the appellant on January 21, 2015. New counsel for the 


respondent, however, declined to file the application for a desk divorce on the basis that the 


respondent was having second thoughts about the settlement, and that circumstances had changed. 


[2] The appellant applied for an order that the desk divorce application be filed based on the 


form of Divorce Judgment and Corollary Relief Order that had been agreed to. The chambers 


judge declined to grant the order and did not provide any reasons for his refusal.  


[3] It is in the interests of all participants in the family law system that settlements be reached, 


and when reached that these settlements be enforced. The respondent has failed to provide any 


acceptable reason why the desk divorce application has not been made. If circumstances have truly 


changed, the proper approach would be to apply for a variation after the Divorce Judgment and 


Corollary Relief Order are granted. 


[4] The Settlement Agreement also provided that the parties would mediate any disputes 


before applying to the court. The chambers judge dispensed with this requirement, on the basis that 


the respondent no longer wishes to mediate, and mediation might well be unsuccessful. Having 


agreed to this requirement, the respondent cannot simply ignore it, and there was no basis for the 


chambers judge to dispense with mediation. Dispensing with mediation merely rewards the 


respondent for breaching the provisions of the Settlement Agreement 


[5] Accordingly, the appeal is allowed. Counsel for the respondent is directed to apply 


forthwith for the Divorce Judgment and the Corollary Relief Order previously consented to by 


counsel for the appellant. Both parties are required to attend mediation in good faith before 


bringing any further applications before the Court. This latter directive does not apply to any 


applications pertaining to the mobility application that is currently scheduled to be heard in the 


spring of 2017. 


Appeal heard on September 6, 2016 


 


Memorandum filed at Edmonton, Alberta 


this 9th day of September 2016 


 


 
McDonald J.A.  


20
16


 A
B


C
A


 2
56


 (
C


an
LI


I)







Page: 2 
 
 
 


 


Appearances: 
 


L.R. Hawkeye 


 for the Appellant 


 


L.H. Bruyer 


 for the Respondent 


  


  


 


 


20
16


 A
B


C
A


 2
56


 (
C


an
LI


I)








November 08, 2016 4:32PM ADR Institute of Alberta
BUSINESS UNIT REPORT


Ten Months Ended October 31, 2016


2016 2016 10 Months End... YTD Variance 2015 2014 2013
Budget YTD Budget Oct 31, 2016 Better (Worse) Audited Audited Audited


than Budget


Governance
Less: Direct Costs 45,455 $ 37,462 $ 38,700 $ (1,238)$ 45,887 $ 47,375 $ 41,163 $
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 5% 5,613 4,692 4,664 28 5,617 6,520 7,898 


Total Governance (51,068)$ (42,154)$ (43,364)$ (1,210)$ (51,504)$ (53,895)$ (49,061)$


Membership 115,455 $ 104,170 $ 102,005 $ (2,165)$ 107,855 $ 93,375 $ 101,780 $
Less: Direct Costs 48,376 40,880 37,512 3,368 45,158 43,485 56,199 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 25% 28,065 23,460 23,322 138 28,084 32,604 39,491 


Net Profit (Loss) Membership 39,014 $ 39,830 $ 41,171 $ 1,341 $ 34,613 $ 17,286 $ 6,090 $


ADR Business Services 87,800 $ 73,200 $ 69,519 $ (3,681)$ 78,495 $ 80,810 $ 66,491 $
Less: Direct Cost 82,676 68,980 70,220 (1,240) 81,351 68,882 63,933 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 10% 11,226 9,384 9,329 55 11,234 13,042 15,796 


Net Profit (Loss) ADR Business Services (6,102)$ (5,164)$ (10,030)$ (4,866)$ (14,090)$ (1,114)$ (13,238)$


PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT


Certificate Programs 319,980 $ 263,946 $ 272,442 $ 8,496 $ 308,105 $ 320,212 $ 393,982 $
Less: Direct Costs 198,330 166,920 155,002 11,918 184,323 188,662 225,590 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 25% 28,065 23,460 23,322 138 28,084 32,604 39,491 


Net Profit (Loss) Certificate Programs 93,585 $ 73,566 $ 94,118 $ 20,552 $ 95,698 $ 98,946 $ 128,901 $


Specialty & Professional  Dev 38,100 $ 38,100 $ 18,500 $ (19,600)$ 29,160 $ 67,721 $ 13,500 $
Less: Direct Costs 43,990 40,700 28,544 12,156 38,649 48,319 25,379 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 10% 11,226 9,384 9,329 55 11,233 13,042 15,796 


Net Profit (Loss) Specialty & Professional Dev (17,116)$ (11,984)$ (19,373)$ (7,389)$ (20,722)$ 6,360 $ (27,675)$


Contract Training 34,200 $ 28,500 $ 67,910 $ 39,410 $ 28,600 $ 27,295 $ 132,032 $
Less: Direct Costs 31,080 25,900 34,768 (8,868) 29,968 40,935 94,038 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 10% 11,226 9,384 9,329 55 11,233 13,042 15,796 


Net Profit (Loss) Contract Training (8,106)$ (6,784)$ 23,813 $ 30,597 $ (12,601)$ (26,682)$ 22,198 $


Conference 25,000 $ 25,000 $ 0 $ (25,000)$ 0 $ 23,693 $ 26,865 $
Less: Direct Costs 47,100 44,250 14,988 29,262 16,616 32,811 29,836 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 10% 11,226 9,384 9,329 55 11,233 13,042 15,796 


Net Profit (Loss) Conference (33,326)$ (28,634)$ (24,317)$ 4,317 $ (27,849)$ (22,160)$ (18,767)$


Designation & Accreditation 8,550 $ 8,550 $ 11,475 $ 2,925 $ 8,875 $ 9,700 $ 15,145 $
Less: Direct Costs 13,540 11,400 14,046 (2,646) 14,879 11,949 13,093 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 5% 5,613 4,692 4,664 28 5,617 6,521 7,898 


Net Profit (Loss) Designation & Accreditation (10,603)$ (7,542)$ (7,235)$ 307 $ (11,621)$ (8,770)$ (5,846)$


Revenue Other Income 0 $ 0 $ 242 $ 242 $ 480 $ 1,907 $ 1,826 $


Total Revenue 629,085 $ 541,466 $ 542,093 $ 627 $ 561,570 $ 624,713 $ 751,621 $
Total Expense 622,806 530,332 487,067 43,265 569,166 612,835 707,193 
Net Profit (Loss) 6,279 $ 11,134 $ 55,026 $ 43,892 $ (7,596)$ 11,878 $ 44,428 $








C0252594.v1 


TREASURER’S REPORT – NOVEMBER, 2016 


 The following reports are available on the ADRIA website (Board Members Resources):  


o Balance Sheet – October 31, 2016   


o Business Unit Report - Ten Months Ended October 31, 2016  


o ADRIA Planning Budget 2017 


o 2016/2017 Business Unit Budget comparison   


 Additional financial documents are available to board members who want copies of them. 


NET PROFIT/LOSS PROJECTIONS 


 A surplus of approximately $13,000 is projected for year end.  This marks an improvement 


over last year’s net loss of $7,596, and a small gain over the 2016 "balanced budget" 


planning projection of $6,279 as presented to the Board in late 2015.  As you might recall, we 


were ahead of budget by as much as $100K in the summer months, but Fall registrations 


were low. 


 For 2017, a "balanced planning budget", with a projected surplus of only $583 is presented 


for planning purposes.  Cuts were made to balance this budget, and additional adjustments 


might be required before year-end. 


GENERAL COMMENTS  


 Higher than expected revenues were received in early 2016, followed by much lower than 


expected revenues in the latter half of the year, mainly from our highest revenue source - 


professional development and education.   


 


 Fall courses that had been projected to generate more than $40,000 in revenue had to be 


cancelled.  


 


 Currently there is no reason to believe that 2017 Winter/Spring course registrations will be any 


better. 


 


 Total memberships have increased slightly in 2016 compared to last year (from 538 to the 560s)  


 


 Some of the early in-year surplus was invested in marketing and course design for 2017 and 


beyond.   


 


 Why are course revenues much lower than anticipated?  People haven’t registered for courses as 


expected.  Why is that?  The obvious conclusion to draw is that people who might otherwise 


register for ADRIA’s courses aren’t doing so because they have less disposable income due to 


Alberta’s weakened economy. 


  


FUTURE FINANCIAL OUTLOOK & STRATEGIC PLANNING 


 Paul and his staff have done an excellent job of managing ADRIA’s finances considering the 


negative external factors they’ve had to deal with in the latter half of the year (i.e. the continued 


downturn in the economy).   He has managed to draft a balanced budget for 2017, which was 


difficult to accomplish due to expected low course revenues.   


 







C0252594.v1 


 That being said, how can we increase profits going forward?  Keep in mind that the following 


comments are by no means what I would consider best practice options, and are merely being 


thrown out there to start a discussion: 


 


 Do we consider reducing course registration fees while Alberta’s economy remains slow?  Is this 


ideal?  No.  Is it practical?  Not really (e.g. instructors still need to be paid from course registration 


fees).  However, some businesses are currently offering their regular products and services at 


noticeably reduced rates simply to remain viable during this economic downturn.  


 


 Partnerships/arrangements with third parties need to be maintained/strengthened and new ones 


developed.  Currently, ADRIA’s administration of CAMVAP throughout Alberta and Northwest 


Territories generates a modest net profit.  What other organizations can ADRIA approach to 


increase revenues and the ADRIA brand? 


 


 How can we increase public awareness of ADR and ADRIA?  Information sessions?  More 


networking events? 


 


 ADRIA has improved its website and continues to work on marketing initiatives.  How can ADRIA 


create a greater public presence? 


 


 How can corporate memberships be substantially increased?  Do existing and potential corporate 


members see a benefit in a corporate membership? 


 


 How can we reduce expenses for both the short term and long term?  Can some/all future board 


meetings be held via conference call/video conferencing? 


 


 Despite the small net profit currently projected for next year, we need to remain optimistic that the 


second half of 2017 will bring greater revenue to ADRIA.   


 


 Desperate times might call for desperate measures.  They also demand creative solutions. 








6.4.1 


 


3. Linkage to Ownership 


The Board acts in trusteeship for membership and serves as the connection with the ADRIA members. 


Legal Ownership: The members of ADRIA. 


Moral Ownership: The members of the public who benefit from the services of members. 


The Board links to the ownership in the following ways: 


1. Attitude 


The first level of obligation is attitude:  Directors act on the belief that they are trustees for the owners. The Board 


takes into account all appropriate considerations, loyalties and leadership in its discussions. 


2. Statistics 


At a second level, the Board gathers statistical evidence of the members’ concerns, needs and demographic 


information. 


3. Information  


The third level engages the Board in information gathering such as: 


 reviewing articles in the media for appropriate trends 


 presentations at Board meetings by appropriate people 


 dialogue with other Boards or public officials 


 other community input 


4. The Board has determined as a policy that the following membership categories will be offered to its 


members: Full, Associate, LINK, Organizational and Organizational Learner. 


 


5. The Board will spend regular time in its meetings discussing and deciding issues of membership. 


6. The Board has a role in member complaints. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: OCTOBER 31, 2015   


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY 


 


 








6.4.2 


 


 


MONITORING DATE: JUNE 


18. Board Evaluation 


At least annually, the Board will set aside part of a Board meeting to discuss and monitor the Board’s own 


progress. The responsibility for this initiative and for ensuring a fair, balanced discussion rests with the Governance 


Committee.  


The Board Calendar will note the annual review. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: OCTOBER 31, 2015 


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY 


 


19. Board Policy for the monitoring of ADRIA-delivered courses 


Acknowledging the value of having Board members that stay current and are fully aware of the current ADRIA 


course offerings, the Board has determined that provisions should be made to facilitate such monitoring when 


practical (Ref: minutes from April & June 2016 Board meetings).  Monitoring could be for all or any portion of the 


course.  The Board stipulated that the monitoring of courses will remain at the discretion of the Instructor, and 


must in no way disrupt or diminish the learning experience for any paying student.  The Instructor will stipulate in 


advance the level of engagement and participation that will be allowed.  The Board further stipulated that the 


Board member must cover any ADRIA out-of-pocket costs associated with monitoring, and the Board understands 


that no more than one individual will be allowed to monitor any one course at a time.  Board members will not 


seek any evaluation, credit (other than for CPD) or qualification (ie for designations, certificate programs, etc) 


when permitted to monitor a course offered through ADRIA, but will instead pay full price should they seek such 


consideration.  Any Board member wishing to monitor a course may communicate directly with the Director 


Professional Development, while keeping the Executive Director informed.  Board members who monitor a course 


are to provide feedback on their experience to the ADRIA instructor(s) and staff, as well as a verbal report to their 


Board colleagues at the next Board meeting. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 10, 2016 


MONITORING DATE: SEPTEMBER 


 


 





